
 

Overview & Scrutiny scrutiny@brighton-hove.gov.uk 

 
 
 

Title: Culture, Tourism & Enterprise Overview & 
Scrutiny Committee 

Date: 30 September 2010 

Time: 4.00pm 

Venue Council Chamber, Hove Town Hall 

Members: Councillors: 
Kennedy (Chair), Drake (Deputy Chairman), 
Davis, Harmer-Strange, Marsh, C Theobald, 
Turton and Randall 

Contact: Julia Riches/Karen Amsden 
Scrutiny Support Officer 
 
julia.riches@brighton-
hove.gov.uk/karen.amsden@brighton-
hove.gov.uk 

 
The Town Hall has facilities for wheelchair users, 
including lifts and toilets 

 

T  

An Induction loop operates to enhance sound for 
anyone wearing a hearing aid or using a transmitter 
and infra red hearing aids are available for use 
during the meeting.  If you require any further 
information or assistance, please contact the 
receptionist on arrival. 

  

 FIRE / EMERGENCY EVACUATION PROCEDURE 
 

If the fire alarm sounds continuously, or if you are 
instructed to do so, you must leave the building by 
the nearest available exit.  You will be directed to 
the nearest exit by council staff.  It is vital that you 
follow their instructions: 
 

• You should proceed calmly; do not run and do 
not use the lifts; 

• Do not stop to collect personal belongings; 

• Once you are outside, please do not wait 
immediately next to the building, but move 
some distance away and await further 
instructions; and 

• Do not re-enter the building until told that it is 
safe to do so. 

 



CULTURE, TOURISM & ENTERPRISE OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 

AGENDA 
 

Part One Page 
 

14. PROCEDURAL BUSINESS 1 - 2 

 

15. MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING 3 - 10 

 

16. CHAIR'S COMMUNICATIONS  

 

17. LETTERS  AND WRITTEN QUESTIONS FROM COUNCILLORS 

 No letters or written questions have been received. 

 

 

18. PUBLIC QUESTIONS 

 No public questions have been received. 

 

 

19. MARATHON UPDATE 

 Verbal update from Tim Hutchings, The Grounded Events Company. 

11 - 46 

 

20. LEGIBILITY STUDY 

 Presentation by Jim Mayor.  
A copy of the Streetscape Design Guidelines can be found at: 
 
http://www.brighton-
hove.gov.uk/downloads/bhcc/transport/Streetscape_Design_Guidelines.p
df  

 

 

21. LEISURE CONTRACT - UPDATE FROM WORKSHOP 

 Verbal Update by Toby Kingsbury, Sports Facilities Manager, B&HCC. 

 

 

22. STATUTORY LOCAL ECONOMIC ASSESSMENT DUTY 

 Contact Officer: Paula Murray Tel: 29-2536 

47 - 56 

 Ward Affected: All Wards;   
 

23. IN YEAR BUDGET SAVINGS - FREE SWIMMING INITIATIVE 

 Contact Officer: Toby Kingsbury Tel: 01273 292701 

57 - 60 

 Ward Affected: All Wards;   
 

24. WORK PROGRAMME 

 Contact Officer: Julia Riches Tel: 01273 29-1084 

61 - 62 

 Ward Affected: All Wards;   
 

25. CTEOSC SCRUTINY PANELS 63 - 74 



CULTURE, TOURISM & ENTERPRISE OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 

 Contact Officer: Tom Hook Tel: 29-1110 
 Ward Affected: All Wards;   
 

26. ITEMS TO GO FORWARD TO CABINET, THE RELEVANT CABINET 
MEMBER MEETING OR COUNCIL 

 To consider items to be submitted to the next available Cabinet, Cabinet 
Member Meeting or to Council. 

 

 

 PART TWO 

27. MINUTES FROM 1 JULY 2010 - PART 2  

 
 

The City Council actively welcomes members of the public and the press to attend its 
meetings and holds as many of its meetings as possible in public.  Provision is also made 
on the agendas for public questions to committees and details of how questions can be 
raised can be found on the website and/or on agendas for the meetings. 
 
The closing date for receipt of public questions and deputations for the next meeting is 12 
noon on the fifth working day before the meeting. 
 
Agendas and minutes are published on the council’s website www.brighton-hove.gov.uk.  
Agendas are available to view five working days prior to the meeting date. 
 
Meeting papers can be provided, on request, in large print, in Braille, on audio tape or on 
disc, or translated into any other language as requested. 
 
For further details and general enquiries about this meeting contact Julia Riches (email 
julia.riches@brighton-hove.gov.uk) or email scrutiny@brighton-hove.gov.uk 
 
 

 

Date of Publication - Wednesday, 22 September 2010 

 

 

 





        Agenda Item 14  
 
 
To consider the following Procedural Business:- 
 
A. Declaration of Substitutes 
 

Where a Member of the Committee is unable to attend a meeting for 
whatever reason, a substitute Member (who is not a Cabinet Member) 
may attend and speak and vote in their place for that meeting. 
Substitutes are not allowed on Scrutiny Select Committees or Scrutiny 
Panels. 

 
 The substitute Member shall be a Member of the Council drawn from 

the same political group as the Member who is unable to attend the 
meeting, and must not already be a Member of the Committee. The 
substitute Member must declare themselves as a substitute, and be 
minuted as such, at the beginning of the meeting or as soon as they 
arrive.  

 
 
B. Declarations of Interest 
 
 (1) To seek declarations of any personal or personal & prejudicial 

interests under Part 2 of the Code of Conduct for Members in 
relation to matters on the Agenda.  Members who do declare such 
interests are required to clearly describe the nature of the interest.   

  
 (2) A Member of the Overview and Scrutiny Commission, an 

Overview and Scrutiny Committee or a Select Committee has a 
prejudical interest in any business at meeting of that Committee 
where –  
(a) that business relates to a decision made (whether 
implemented or not) or action taken by the Executive or another 
of the Council’s committees, sub-committees, joint committees or 
joint sub-committees; and 
(b) at the time the decision was made or action was taken the 
Member was  
 (i) a Member of the Executive or that committee, sub-committee, 
joint committee or joint sub-committee and  
 (ii) was present when the decision was made or action taken. 

 
 (3) If the interest is a prejudicial interest, the Code requires the 

Member concerned:-  
(a) to leave the room or chamber where the meeting takes place 

while the item in respect of which the declaration is made is 
under consideration. [There are three exceptions to this rule 
which are set out at paragraph (4) below]. 

(b) not to exercise executive functions in relation to that business 
and  

1



(c) not to seek improperly to influence a decision about that 
business. 

 
(4) The circumstances in which a Member who has declared a 

prejudicial interest is permitted to remain while the item in respect 
of which the interest has been declared is under consideration 
are:- 
(a) for the purpose of making representations, answering 

questions or giving evidence relating to the item, provided that 
the public are also allowed to attend the meeting for the same 
purpose, whether under a statutory right or otherwise, BUT the 
Member must leave immediately after he/she has made the 
representations, answered the questions, or given the 
evidence, 

(b) if the Member has obtained a dispensation from the Standards 
Committee, or 

(c) if the Member is the Leader or a Cabinet Member and has 
been required to attend before an Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee or Sub-Committee to answer questions. 

 
C. Declaration of Party Whip 
 

To seek declarations of the existence and nature of any party whip in 
relation to any matter on the Agenda as set out at paragraph 8 of the 
Overview and Scrutiny Ways of Working. 

 
D. Exclusion of Press and Public 
 

To consider whether, in view of the nature of the business to be 
transacted, or the nature of the proceedings, the press and public 
should be excluded from the meeting when any of the following items 
are under consideration. 

 
NOTE:  Any item appearing in Part 2 of the Agenda states in its 
heading the category under which the information disclosed in the 
report is confidential and therefore not available to the public. 

 
A list and description of the exempt categories is available for public 
inspection at Brighton and Hove Town Halls. 

 
 

2



AGENDA ITEM 15 
 
 

BRIGHTON & HOVE CITY COUNCIL 
 

CULTURE, TOURISM & ENTERPRISE OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 
 

4.00PM 1 JULY 2010 
 

COUNCIL CHAMBER, HOVE TOWN HALL 
 

MINUTES 
 

Present: Councillors Kennedy (Chair); Drake (Deputy Chairman), Davis, Harmer-Strange, 
Marsh, Randall and Smart 
 
Co-opted Members:   
 

 
 

 
PART ONE 

 
 

1. PROCEDURAL BUSINESS 
 
Apologies from Cllr Craig Turton 
 
Substitutes 
Cllr David Smart for Cllr Carol Theobald 
 
Declarations of interest 
The Chairman, Councillor Amy Kennedy declared an interest: in Item 13 on Major Projects “As 
a member of the Planning Committee I will be required to determine any planning application 
submitted in respect of this project. My involvement in the scrutiny function in respect of 
the project is not to be interpreted as any pre-disposition or pre-determination of that planning 
application on my part. Any such planning application will be treated entirely on its planning 
merits and I am able to participate in the overview and scrutiny process accordingly.” 
 
Exclusion of the press and public 
In accordance with section 100A(4) of the Local Government Act 1972, it was considered 
whether the press and public should be excluded from the meeting during the consideration of 
any items contained in the agenda, having regard to the nature of the business to be 
transacted and the nature of the proceedings and the likelihood as to whether, if a member of 
the press and public were present, there would be disclosure to them of confidential or exempt 
information as defined in section 1001(1) of said Act. 
 
RESOLVED – that the press and public are excluded from the meeting during item 13, Major 
Projects Update 
 

3



 CULTURE, TOURISM & ENTERPRISE OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE 

1 JULY 2010 

 
 
2. CHAIRMAN'S COMMUNICATIONS 
 
The Chair of the Committee, Councillor Amy Kennedy welcomed all to the meeting, particularly 
the Cabinet Member Councillor David Smith.  She paid tribute to Councillor Bill Randall as the 
previous Chair of the Committee and wished to record her personal thanks for all his hard 
work. 
 
Councillor Kennedy reminded the Committee of the fantastic success of the Brighton Festival, 
which had happened since the Committee had last met. She had been particularly impressed 
by the Fabrica Exhibition by Brian Eno.  Andrew Comben was due to be invited to the next 
meeting of the Committee to provide an update on the Festival. Two other events were the 
Dark Day in Paradise at the Pavilion and Blind Art at Hove Museum. The Marathon had been 
great and an update would be requested for a later meeting.  Councillor Marsh reminded the 
Committee that the performance “Before I Sleep” was fantastic and due to finish at the 
weekend.  
 
3. MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING 
 
Councillor Davis asked for an update on Ms Murray’s visit to Falmer (para 63). Ms Murray 
informed the Committee that she had met with the organisers and they were only allowed to 
hold two events a year. 
 
RESOLVED – that the minutes of the meeting on 1 April 2010 be approved and signed by the 
Chair. 
 
4. WRITTEN QUESTIONS AND LETTERS FROM COUNCILLORS 
 
There were none. 
 
5. VERBAL PRESENTATION ON THE ARCHAEOLOGICAL REVIEW 
 
Mr Richard Le Saux, Senior Keeper, Keeper of Local History & Archaeology gave a 
presentation on the archaeological review (for copy see minute book). He explained that the 
Collections Review was a formulaic process that assessed five principal areas: curatorial, use, 
significance, collections care and museum context.  He explained what each of these areas 
covered. The review was carried out by Dr Pope, an external specialist, with the help of the in-
house subject specialists. Dr Pope had recommended that the flora and fauna in the Booth 
museum was included in the review.   
 
The Ice Age collections were fantastic and represented the fundamental questions of what it is 
to be human, the emergence of our species, and the extinction of other branches of the human 
tree. The artefacts in Brighton & Hove tell a global story.  Dr Pope had concluded that the 
Royal Pavilion and Museum holds regionally important collections with research potential. The 
Collections were locally relevant to the story of science in Brighton during 19th Century and the 
emergence of public archaeology.  Mr Le Saux circulated a 420,000 year old axe for the 
Committee to see. 
 

4



 CULTURE, TOURISM & ENTERPRISE OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE 

1 JULY 2010 

Following a question on the Amber Cup, Mr Le Saux informed the committee that it was in the 
British Museum on a temporary loan for the project with the BBC in ‘A history of the world in 
100 objects’. 
 
Ms Janita Bagshawe, Head of Royal Pavilion & Museums, informed the Committee that the 
review was funded externally by Renaissance funding and the Effective Collections fund (from 
the Museums Association).  The Egyptology room had also been externally funded by this. 
 
A question was asked on what was planned after the review and Ms Bagshawe confirmed that 
the long term plan would be to get a proper display. It would be good to get the artefacts into 
the community like the micro museums. 
 
Mr Le Saux explained how the ice age axe had been dated, through the use of typology. 
Similar had axes had been found in contexts that had been dated using oxygen isotope dating.  
The axe looked the same as the dated ones, had been made using the same techniques and 
was found in similar geological context, so it was reasonable to suggest that it was the same 
age as the axes that had been dated. 
 
A question was asked about school visits and Ms Bagshawe noted that the artefacts do not 
always fit with the school curriculum, for example, there are no Tudor exhibits here. As the 
curriculum becomes looser, there would be more opportunities. 
 
After a question on regional comparators, Mr Le Saux informed the Committee that Maidestone 
had comporable flora and fauna, but not human exhibits.  Perhaps our Museums Service 
should act as a regional centre for ice age collections. 
 
The Chair thanked Mr Le Saux for his fascinating presentation. 
 
  
 
6. VERBAL UPDATE ON RENAISSANCE FUNDING 
 
Ms Bagshawe informed the Committee that Renaissance funding had been available since 
2002/3. There were 9 hubs across England with 4 or 5 museums in each hub. Initially, Brighton 
& Hove received £300,000 as a phase 2 hub then got just under £1m per year. This was year 
4. The review of Renaissance funding ended last year. The in year savings had not affected 
programmes at the moment. Ms Bagshaw outlined some of the programmes funded by 
Renaissance including: work on documentation of artefacts; putting 30,000 items on line; 4 
micro museums; the Egyptology room; the Indian Hospital exhibition; work in the sub-regions; 
and the redisplay of the ethnographic exhibitions. 
 
The Museums, Libraries & Archives (MLA) review was considering core funded museums with 
designated collections and big audiences. This would be 5 year funding. Challenge funding is 
being considered for other museums which would involve a strategic commissioning approach. 
Ms Bagshawe noted that it was not yet clear what the Coalition Government was planning. The 
spending review in the Autumn was critical. 
 
It was agreed to add an item on the work programme at a later date to update on the 
Renaissance funding. 
 

5



 CULTURE, TOURISM & ENTERPRISE OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE 

1 JULY 2010 

The Chair thanked Ms Bagshawe and it was noted how well the funding had been used. 
 
7. BRIGHTON & HOVE'S PROGRAMME FOR 2012 
 
Ms Paula Murray, Head of Culture & Economy introduced the report. This was a regular update 
report. The appointment of the 2012 Legacy Manager was an important step. The 2012 
strategy had three strands: profile, participation and infrastructure. The last of these was an 
opportunity to tell a positive story about the development of sports infrastructure in the city. It 
was a simple framework to fit a lot in. The Appendices listed events that have happened and 
are planned. 
 
Questions were asked about what was happening to free swimming in the city, why was Big 
Dance chosen for the one item in 2012 when it happened this year, and why was the Open 
Weekend not being promoted this year?  Ms Murray said that this year’s Big Dance was a pilot. 
Ms Pauline Freestone, 2012 Co-ordinator explained that there were 5 strands to Big Dance 
and primary schools were linked in to perform a dance. There were also community links and 
workshops for older people, those with disabilities, and those with impaired hearing. The Open 
Weekend was under the Cultural Olympiad banner initially, but that had fallen away now. There 
would be coverage of the Open Weekend but no leaflets. 
 
The Cabinet Member for Culture, Recreation and Tourism, Councillor David Smith confirmed 
that there would be a statement shortly on free swimming in the city.   
 
Following a question on the athletic track at Withdean, Councillor Smith confirmed that one of 
the main aims was to get a state of the art athletic track back when the football team had 
moved. Mr Scott Marshall, Director of Housing, Culture, and Enterprise noted that there was an 
open dialogue with the football club on these issues. 
 
The events in the suburbs of the city were welcomed, as well as central events. The example 
of local community bands was given. Following a question on are there any partners the 
Council wished to work with and weren’t Ms Murray told the Committee that they would like to 
be more involved in the national programme and were working on that.  The idea of attracting 
athletes to the city was no longer a viable one, although the Yellow Wave is a recognised 
facility. 
 
Following a question on the fall in tourism during 2012, Mr Adam Bates, Head of Tourism and 
Venues noted that it was hard to predict. Evidence in Greece showed that over the whole year 
of the Olympics, the effect was neutral. The two core areas they were focusing on were: the 
attention of the world’s media and they would work hard with accredited and non-accredited 
journalists to make the most of this; and the increase in business and conference events. 
 
RESOLVED – to note the report and endorse the activity to date, to continue to endorse the 
partnership approach, to support the council in facilitating the strategy, to support the branding, 
and to agree a regular update. 
 
8. THE CITY'S APPROACH TO TOURISM 
 
Mr Bates outlined the report and thanked the Committee for the opportunity to bring the report 
to them.  The strategy was about sustaining and creating jobs. The service used intelligence 
and data significantly to design and shape what they do and to guide decisions. There was a 

6



 CULTURE, TOURISM & ENTERPRISE OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE 

1 JULY 2010 

lot of partnership working with 330 partners. So far, the lack of funding had not stopped 
innovation. They were also responsive and when the economic downturn hit in 2008, they 
pulled all partners together at once to discuss the issues. There was also a lot of cross-
authority working – all the 8 million visitors experience the city across the board (eg highways, 
museums, safety etc).  Councillor Smith added that to be in the top 10 cities was fantastic and 
there was a need to balance to day and night time economy. 
 
Mr John Carmichael, Marketing Manager, showed a quick video promoting Brighton & Hove. 
 
A question was asked about the deal with the Oyster card in London.  Mr Bates explained that 
this was totally funded by First Capital Connect who were also funding a small guide for Time 
Out.  The Council were working with transport providers to bring people into the city. It was 
acknowledged that the engineering works can be an issue.  Seasonability was a big issue for 
tourism and it is about spreading the benefits. The marathon in April was a good example of 
this. On the issue of the nightime economy, the Council had Beacon Status. 
 
A question was asked why so many visitors were from Germany and Mr Carmichael replied 
that there had been a PR agency promoting the city to German speakers for the last three 
years and the number of visitors had grown year on year.  German publications had been 
targeted and there were great benefits for the city. 
 
On the Brighton Centre, they were in the process of making moderate investments to compete 
in the market.  On the figures for English language students in the city, there was a paucity of 
data but this was a relatively well managed sector. ‘Operation Colombus’ had been a 
partnership of the schools, the Council and the police for over 10 years.  It was remarked that 
looking after overseas students brought money into communities. 
 
Following a question on an apparent discrepancy in the figure for overnight stays (17% or 40%) 
it was suggested that one was a figure from the UK and one from international visitors. The 
17% was more accurate. Mr Bates explained that the main focus was to deliver staying visitors. 
There was an issue around lower occupancy of stock at around 60% but the spend delivered 
was higher than average. 
 
The Chair thanked Mr Bates and his team for an informative and interesting report. 
 
9. CREATIVE INDUSTRIES IN BRIGHTON & HOVE 
 
Ms Murray introduced the report which gave an update on the creative industries and on New 
England House.  She informed the Committee that they were currently recruiting a sub-sectoral 
post (to focus on creative and environmental industries).  The last audit of creative industries 
was 2007 and they were updating this. Space was still a major issue. 
 
Mr Max Woodford, Project Manager, outlined the strategy for New England House. New 
England House provided affordable, subsidised units and had a waiting list but there was an 
issue over the lack of high-tech space. DCA  Consulting had been appointed to prepare the 
business case. They would talk to existing building users: it was not about moving tenants but 
making better use of the space. 
 
The issue of affordable space was raised and Mr Woodford suggested that tiered rates may be 
used. There was a tension between lower rents and protecting income. They were also aware 

7



 CULTURE, TOURISM & ENTERPRISE OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE 

1 JULY 2010 

of the needs for high speed cables to fit the digital industries. This would be addressed in the 
next stage of the plan.  The universities and Wired Sussex were both involved in the process. 
Committee members welcomed the involvement of these partners. 
 
The idea of transferring assets to the community so the building was run by a trust was 
suggested. Mr Woodford noted that a report would go to Cabinet in September and then the 
discussions would be around what sort of a vehicle was appropriate to take New England 
House forward. 
 
RESOLVED  - that a verbal update be given to the Committee after the Cabinet Meeting in 
September. 
 
10. LOCAL AREA AGREEMENT - 2009/10 PROGRESS UPDATE. RECESSION RELIEF 

WORK PHASE 2 PERFORMANCE FOCUS 
 
Mr Richard Miles, Performance Analyst, introduced the report. In the LAA targets, only one was 
significantly off target and that was the NEET figure.  The Appendix gave an update over the 
last year and it would be brought back in 6 months time.  
 
The national economic data lags by around two years. Brighton & Hove commissioned an 
economic forecast based on local and national information. The growth rates (in the 
projections) are positive and up 14-18%.  In the Gross Value Added (GVA) projections, the 
higher sectors such as banking are doing well. The overall picture was a positive one. 
 
The vacancy rates were not as bad as national figures – there were some areas of concern but 
these were being addressed by the empty premises team. They had worked with local artists 
and also used images from the museum service to improve empty premises. 
 
Following a question on school visits, Ms Bagshawe explained that 2 museums in the sub 
region had dropped out of the programme and this had impacted on the figure.   
 
A Committee Member asked whether there could be a report on the knowledge economy. Mr 
Marshall confirmed there was no indicator on this but they would consider how to take this 
further. 
 
Preston Street was raised as a concern and the Committee were told that there was funding for 
a mini masterplan for Preston Street. The Council were working with businesses to put this 
together. The images used in the empty shop fronts were emergency measures to make it look 
better. 
 
A discussion took place over what the subject should be for the focus of the next report and it 
was agreed that this would be worklessness with an emphasis on young people. 
 
RESOLVED – that the area of focus for overview on the next report would be worklessness 
with an emphasis on young people. 
 
 
 
11. WORK PROGRAMME 
 

8



 CULTURE, TOURISM & ENTERPRISE OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE 

1 JULY 2010 

The workshop on the leisure management contract was confirmed as July 27 from 1-3pm in 
R431, King’s House. 
 
Andrew Comben, Chief Executive of the Dome and Festival would be invited to give a 
presentation at the next meeting on the Festival. 
 
The other areas on the agenda for September were: marketing and use of Council Premises; 
legibility study; marathon feedback; ad-hoc panel report; workshop feedback; Local Economic 
Assessment. 
 
Other future issues included: co-operatives; the business case for culture; report on the 
implications for the cultural sector from the changes underway. 
 
 
12. ITEMS TO GO FORWARD TO  COUNCIL, CABINET OR THE RELEVANT CABINET 

MEMBER MEETING 
 
There were none. 
 
13. MAJOR PROJECTS UPDATE 
 

 
The meeting concluded at 7pm 

 
Signed 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Chair 

Dated this day of  
 

9



10



��

�

�
�
�
�
�

���������	��
�����
�������������	�
�
���
������������
��
������
�
�

�
�

�
�

�
���
��	��	��
������
�������
�������
���
��
����
��
����������������
�����

�
��
��� ! �

���������	
�� � � � � � �

�

�
�����������
�������� � � �

�������	����
�������� � � � �

���������� � � � � � �

���������� � � � � � �


� �� !�� � � � � � �

�
�
�

11



�

�

�

12



"�

�

��"#�"#��

�#��$�"%��
$&&'�(�)))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))���

�

�)� "*���+$��"�*)))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))���

�)�� 
�,�
������-��	.��������))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))���

�)/� �������������������
�)))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))� �

�

/)� 
����'����
$�%�(���
$0�
�)))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))�1�

/)�� 
������������2����))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))�1�

������ ������	
�
�
�)))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))�3�

/)/� �����2���,����))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))�4�

������ ����������
����
�����	����	�
�����	
�
�)))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))����

������ �����������	
��)))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))����

������ ��
�����������	��
��	��)))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))����

������ ��	�� �!
���
��������
"
#��
���)))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))��/�

����$� %���	���
���
��	��
��
���))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))��/�

����&� '�������
��������


��))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))��5�

�����(� )���	������
����������
��*	
������ ������))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))��5�

/)5� �����������2�������))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))����

��+��� ,
����
�
����������������))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))����

��+��� ��	�� �!
���,-
����))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))����

��+�+� ��."
�
�-���	�����������))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))�� �

��+��� �	��


��������."
��������
�����))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))�� �

��+��� /���	��
������))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))�� �

��+��� 0���	
���))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))��6�

��+��� )��	�""���1�-��������������)))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))��6�

��+�$� �
��
������

"
��
�))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))��1�

�

5)� ��&���"����
$�%�(���
$0�
�)))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))�/��

5)�� ��������������2����))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))��3�

+����� ������	
�
��))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))��3�

+����� �����	��
"�� �2����	�))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))��4�

5)/� �����2���,����))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))�/��

+����� 3��4"��������������))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))�/��

+����� )��	�
�����	
�
�))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))�/��

+���+� �������������	�
�����	
�)))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))�/��

+����� ���������	��
��	��)))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))�/��

+����� ��

�	���
���
�����
��0
�-�)))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))�//�

5)5� �����������2�������))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))�/5�

+�+��� /�������."
�
�-�)))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))�/5�

+�+�+� �	��


��������."
��������
�����))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))�/��

+�+��� /���	��
������))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))�/ �

13



�

�

""�

�

+�+��� 0���	
���))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))�/6�

�

�� ���*�&"��"&�'���))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))�5��

�)�� ���������������7������,���)))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))�/1�

������ ,�������	���"���� ���"���)))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))�/1�

������ 0�����
��	��5����
��	��)))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))�/3�

����+� ���
�
���"������	�
�"�.���
���
)))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))�/3�

�)/� +��������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������

�)5� ����������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������

�

14



�

�

��

�

�$��%#&'��(%))�*+�
�

�

���,����
�����(�����

�

&�.����������������������������������������������2����,	����������������������	����������������������

���,���)�������������,�����������������������������������2��������,�,����8��������&�����������	��������

����$9�
�������������������%���06,������:������������������2����;��<�����������	
�$9�
�����������7�

�������,	��������������������=0������+�����������'����
:������
�������:�(��<������>��;���:�%����8������:�

*�����?����+�����������'����
�����@�����;����
�&��<������8,���,A��������������������;�
����;���������

���������2���.������������������,���)�

�

�

-�������
��#��������
�����&�������

�

���������������������2������������������������������������������
�;���������	���������
������	,��	���������

��������<���������)�"��2��,���������������������������������������
��2��������2�����,����������������

������
��,�����������������:����������:������������������������������������)�

�

>��������,�������2������������:�;�������������������������������������������8��������-������������
����

�����,����2�������������/�������,�,����8��������&�������������������������
�2��,������������7������,����2�

�������������������������������)��

�

8�������������22������
������������������������������:��������,�����2�������,�
����������+���������������

"�������2�B/)6������������8��������-������=;����,������,������2����,����������22����A)������������������������2�

����������������7������,���;���������������= 1C��2������������������A�������
�����,�����2���������������

���,�:�2����;���	
��,������=/3C��2������������������A)�
������������������������
�	
����������������������

��������,����������������2������������������������,����������������������
����������������,����2���� C��2�

����+���������������"�����)�

�

�'���������;��2��������������������������	,��	��������������������������������������	���	���;)�

�

#�����.�/�-���������
�������������������� � � � � 0������.�/�-����������
��	���������������
�

� �1��
������� 2��	�������

*��D��������������������7������,��� B�:�4�:�/3�  1C�

*��D���������������������7������,��� B15�: ��� /3C�

(��3������� 4�5��6578 � 962�

����������������7������,��� B���:���� � C�

#������1��
������� 4�5:�6578 � !  2�

� � �
;��
����������������������!<=9� 4=5:�=5>7>�

�
� �

�

15



�

�

/�

�

�

�

�������������������������2��7������,���;���������������������<����;���������,�����2���51C��2������������

�7������,������������D�����������������������������������������=�����7�B3/5:6��A:�2����;���������
�	
�

��������������=����,������2���5�C��2�������������7������,��:����B66/:/��A�;����������������������������

�7������2��:����������������������������������������8��������-�����)�

�

&��
�����������������������2,�������7������,�����������������������������,����2�<���<D����22�������������2����

�����
���������������������������2���������������������������������������������,��������,��������<��;�����

����E�,����������22����F)�8���������&������,�
F��@,����������.�����������������������,�������������������

�,����������2��)53����������������2�������������������.����)�'���
����������,����������������8��������

&��������+���������������"������2��,���������������#��������
�����&������	�������	�4=5:�85   <�

�

�

(���������'��������'�����

�

�������,�,����8��������&�����������������������7������
�3�:��������������)��2��������/C�;����������

����������=55:6��A����� 3C�=�6:���A�����������2��������������������,������8��������-�����)�

�

�����������.����
��2����D�����������������������������������
������������������������
������2�����
����;���������

���������=33C:�������������������,��������2���:416�������A)������������.����
�;�������8��������-���������

����
�����:�������������������2����������������
��������,���������������������2������������
:����;����������

���������������	,�����
����������������������,������8��������-�����)�
�7�������������;�������
����

�������������8��������-�����:����������������������2��)���������������������)��

�

*��D��������������������;�����������������2�����
����;���������8��������&���������������.,���,�����B!<6�

������
��,�����������������	����������������������������������=��������A��2�B�5)53�2������������������2�������

��
����B�/�)�1�2������������
�����������������8��������-������=	�����������������������2��)���������A)��

�

����������������������������� 1C��2����������G�����������������������)�

�

�

�����������'��������'�����

�����������,�	����2�8��������&����������������;�����:1��:�	,����������;����������$9������������2������

����,�:���5 C�H��D���;H��������������,�	����2����,����,���������������������������������
����1:6��)��

�2��������,�����:������7������
�/�C�=�: /�A�;�������������������)���������������6:�3���,������;����

	��<�����;���������������;����������
�;�������
�����������������8��������-���������;�������8��������2���

���������.,���2���������
�����������
������������������������	�,�������;�I���
���������E����D��
F��������:�

�����������2����������������������,����������������������������������
)��

�

16



�

�

5�

�

�������������������������������	,��	�������,������;������������������������������8��������-������;��������������

B 4�:1/��	�������������������������7������,����2�B// )4 �����������)�������7������,��������������

���������������������2��)15�������:�����������������������7������,����2�B�5�)6�����������������/����,��)��

�

�������������������������������	,��	�������,������;����������������8��������-������2���������
�������������

����D��
����������������������������������������������	,�����
�����,������8��������-������;���B��5:133�

	���������������������
��7������,����2�B��)�4�����������)�

�

�������������������������������	,��	������8������������������,���������4>=856!!)����������,������

����������/3C��2����������G������������������������������)�

�

17



�

�

��

�

!<� &"#*�-%�#&�"
�

!<!� (��������������?��������

�

�������������������������2���������2��������������,�
�����������������������������������������2�����

���,�,����8��������&��������;��������<���<�����������
,���
��3���'�����/���)�������,�
�;������������,��

	
��������������$���������,�����
�,��������=�
�A����	����2��2�����@��,�����������������
�����

8��������-���������
���,����)�

�

���������2��������,�
�;����������,����������������2�������
�����������������������������������

���������2����������������,����2�������������7������,����������������8��������-��������������,����2�����

8��������&����������<���������)����������;�,���	������	
���������������2����;�����	.���������

�

�)� ����,��������2���D��D2������������;��,���
��������������������2�5�������������J��

/)� ����,�����������������D������2����;D,���,���
�;�����,�����:��������������������������������/ C��2�

�����������,���
����,������J�

5)� ���������������	�����2������������������������,��������������������,���
����<����������������

�������������
������,���	������,����������������J�

�)� ����,������������,�	����2����������������������������;����������,������8��������-����������;���

;���������������������2�����
����;����������<��������������8��������&�������J�

 )� ����,������������,�	����2������������	��D���������������������8��������-�������������������������

��������������������������������������������	
����D���������J�

6)� ����,������������7������,��������	
����D��������������������������,���������8��������-�����J�

1)� �	������������������2����������D���������7������,������8��������-���������,�����	
���������������)��

>���������
:����;����	��,��2,���������	�����;�������������	
�E���������������F)�"���������,�
:�;����<����������

������������������,����2�������������7������,�������������;�������������������������������	���������
����

���������
������	,��������������������2�����.���2����������������)�"��2��,���������������������������������

������
��2��������2�����,��������������)�"���������,�
�;�����������,������������������������������)��

"���������,�
�;������,���+���������������"���������������������������G2�������,��G��2���������)�"��	�����

�����:��������������������������������	��;�����������,���������������������
���������������������������

������
�D�2����7������	��;���������D����������������������������;�����2��������������,����)�

?�����������
����,����������������,����������������������"�����)����������������������������<��

��.,���������������+���������������"�������������,��������,	��K,����G��������
��������G��2������������

���������;���������������������
)�>����7�����:���������������������������������2������������,���������

�����������2�����������,����������������,����2�����������	,����������;������������
�����2���������������

�������,����������������������;����������������������:����,���������������2���������	,��������)�

?����������2��,���2��������,�
�������������������������2�����8��������&�������:������,���
�������;���������

,����������������������������������������2�����2�����������������,�������������<�
�2���,�����2���������������

8��������-����������,�������������������2������2�������;�������������)�

�

18



�

�

 �

�

�

!<�� *������
����
��������

�

������� ������	

���
�������	����	���

�

"����������	����������,���������������������7������,�������������	
�����&��������,������������������
��������

����������������2�2���D��D2������������;�:�����������2D������������,���
���������<���������)�����������������

�7������,������������	��,�����������	�����2���������������������������������������������������	����

����������	
����������:���������������	.������:�������������
������	���������������2������22�����������������

������
)��

������,��������������������;����������2������������������,������;��������	,�����������	��:��������������

$��������,���������$9�
�����������������������������������%���06,�6��"�
��;���������	�������������

���������������������������,����������2��,	�����������;���������<�
��,������������������������������������

2�������,������������������:�������:������������������������D���������������������������;���������������)�

���������%���06,�6��"�
�������������������������E����������������F���������;������������������$��������

	����,�����2�����������;�����������������������
���������������������	
�����$9�
���������<�������

���;����������������$����������������,�����8��������������$����������	����,�����2������
�
����)���

�

������ ����	�������	��������	���������
��������	�	�

�


���������������������������	��H�����������������H:���������������.����
��2������������������������

�����	,��	�����������������)���;����:�2��������2������,������2�����0������&�������������������������������

�������<���������2������������	,���������������������������)�
����������<�������;�����2����
�����2�������

��������������/6���������<��,������L��	������,����2��������;�������������
������������:�������:�������:�

����2������
��2����������
�������������:�����������������)��

�

�������,�
�2��,������������7������,����2���������������������������)�$��������,���
��������������������

������
�����:��������������������������

�

�� K,����2
��������������������2�������������;�����������8��������-����������������;�������2����

����;����J��

�� ����	��������	����������������������2�������������)�)�;��������
�����������������������2���������
J��

�� K,����2
���������,�	����2���������������
�����������������8��������-��������������������������2�

��������<����,����2�������������������������J��

�� K,����2
������;����
��������������,������������������������������;�������
����8��������-������

����;�������������������������������������������J��

�� K,����2
����2������������
��������������=�����������
���������;���A�������
�����������:���������
�

�7������,������8��������-�����J��

�� ����	������������������������2��������;�����������������2���	��������8��������-�������������

&�������J��

19



�

�

6�

�

�� 2���������	���:�������������������������������������������	���2����2���������������������������
�

�2�8��������-�����)��

�

"��������5��������������;�����������
���������������	����������;��)�
����������;������������;���	
������

�������������2���������������������������������������������,������,����������
������������������2���������

;�������������,����������������K,�����������)��

�

"������������������������,�	���������,��������������,����������������������D����������	������������

�������
I���,��������:�������D��������������,���
�;������������2��������������)�"��������/:4/1�������������

������������������������D��������������,���
����������������������������2�54C)�

�

�

!<=� (�������������

�

���,���� ���� ���������� ��� ������ ���� ��	��� 2���� ;���� ���������
� ���� ��������������)� 
��������� �,���
�

���,���� ���� �������� ����� 2�,�� ���������� ���,��)� ���������� E���������F:� E+�
� ����� ���������F:� E���������� �����

����������=���8-�AF�����E�������������������������=�,������8-�AF)��������2����������������������	���;)��

�

����������������,���
�;���������������	��������������������	��������7�������������������������2��������

������:����,�����������
�	����	,������	
�E��������F�����E*��D��������F�����������)��

�

+�2����������

!�

�����
�������	�7�	�

��������*	
������ ������

8�-��	
��
�������	�7��


��	
�4�������������	�������4�	��	���	�
���������
	���	��"��"�������	�

���������

����
������-�

)��	�
�����	
��
�������	�9
��* �:�;��


��	
�4����	��
��-
������	�
����
��*	
������ ������

)��	�
�����	
��
�������	�9���

���* �:�7��


��	
�4����	��
��-
������	�
�������

���*	
������ �����

�


,���
�2����������������������,���������2����;����<�
�����������

�� ���2�����

�� �����2���,����

�� �����������2�������

�� ����������������

�

20



�

�

1�

�

�<� (@��#�#�*�(%*'�+�*�(%A#(��
�

�<!� (������������	����

�

������ �����������	
������������
�

�

�����������.����
��2������������;����������������2���������������������)�����������������
���L��;���/)45�

�������=/)�4���,���������)�5���������A)��

�

����� �;�� ��������2����� �����������������������������2� �;����,���� =54CAJ����,�����K,������ =/5CA�����������

��������)��

�

#�����!B�����������������C��D�����������������

��������
�������	������������������ �

� '�,���� ��������� ������

8�����������������
�)4�� �)�6� /)���

+�
����������������
/)46� �) �� 5)�6�

�������������������������=���8-�A�
/)61� �)�1� /)35�

�������������������������=�,������8-�A�
5)�1� �) 3� 5)1 �

'��������������
/)�4� �)�5� /)45�

�

#������B�����������������
�
����������������
�D���������������� ���
�� 2�

����'�,���  /� �1C�

�;��'�,���� ��6� 54C�

������'�,���� /�� 1C�

>�,��'�,���� /3� 4C�

>����M�'�,���� �6�  C�

'�,�������
� /5/� 11C�

� � �

������,����������������� 4� 5C�

������,��������;������������������� 5� �C�

�;����,������������������ 4� 5C�

�;����,���������;������������������� /5� 3C�

��������,������������������ 1� /C�

��������,���������;������������������� /� �C�

>�,������������,����;������������������������� � �  C�

'�,����������������� 63� /5C�

������� 5��� ����

�

�

21



�

�

3�

�

������ ����������
��

�

������.����
��2������������;����2�������������������;����������$9�=44CA)�+,����������,���
����
�����������������

��������2�������������;�������,�������=�CA)�

�

#�����=�B�-�����������������������
� � � � � #�����=�B��������������������������
<�

�� ���
�� 2� � �� ���
�� 2�

�����
,���7� ��5� �3C� � 8��L��� �� N�C�

?����
,���7� �3� �6C� � ������� �� N�C�

@�������0������ /�� 1C� � 
����� �� N�C�


,���
� �3� 6C� � � � �

���������� ���  C� � � � �

9���� ��� 5C� � � � �

����7� 4� 5C� � � � �

����2��������� 6� /C� � � � �

�72���������  � /C� � � � �

+����� 5� �C� � � � �


�������� 5� �C� � � � �

@��,������������ /� �C� � � � �


��������=���)�8������A� /� �C� � � � �


�,���(��<������ /� �C� � � � �

8��2��������� �� N�C� � � � �

8��<������ �� N�C� � � � �

���	����������� �� N�C� � � � �

+������ �� N�C� � � � �

0�������������� �� N�C� � � � �


��22��������� �� N�C� � � � �


,22��<� �� N�C� � � � �

�
���-�?���� �� N�C� � � � �

?����&�������� �� N�C� � � � �

?��������� �� N�C� � � � �

�

*����
����2�=�3CA��2���������������������2�������������������;�����������
,���7�=33C��2������������������;����

8��������-���������������A)�
�������������������;����2����?����
,���7�=�6CA:�@�������0������=1CA�����
,���
�

=6CA)�

�

�

������ ���������
��

�

?���� ���<���� ��� ���� ���� ������	,����� �2� ����������:� ������ ��� �� �������� ;������ ��;����� ���� 
�,����� ����

������:�;����6�C��2����������������	�����,������ �
������2����)�

�

���� ������������������� �2� ����������� 2���� ����� ���� / � ���5�������������
� =//CA:� 2����;���	
� ����5 � ������

=/�CA)��

�

22



�

�

4�

�

�������:�33C��2������������;������,���������/C�;������������������� ����,����)��

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�<�� #����	��������

�

������ �������������

�

�,���2�����5�������������������;������������;��:�/���=3�CA�;������
�����������)������;������������������
�

�����
�	��;��������������������=�/6:��/C��2���������������A��������D��������
�����������������=���:�53C��2�

��������������A)�

�

���� ���������� /�C� �2� ����������� ;���� ��� ��� ���������� ����)� �2� ������ �6C� ;���� ���
���� ���������� ���

8��������-�����:��������������������C�;�������
�����,����������8��������-����������)�

�

#�����8B�(����������������������

� ���
�� 2�

0��������������� �/6� �/C�

+�
���������������� ���� 53C�

�������������������������=���8-�A� �3� �6C�

�������������������������=�,������8-�A� �/� �C�

������ 5��� ���C�

�

�

������  ����������!�����

�

�����������.����
��2����D�����������������������������8��������-������������,��
)��

�

'� ������ =55CA��2����
����������������,������8��������-������;������������� 2��� ���� 2����� ����:���������� ���

�5C��2����
������������������8��������-����������1C��2����D��������
�����������)�

�

�

�

�/C�

6C

//C�

/�C

�6C

�6C�

6C�

�C�

�C�  C� ��C � C /�C� / C�

�D�� 

�6D�/�

/ D�5�

5 D���

� D� �

  D�6�

6 D�1�

1 M

 �������"����������
��

23



�

�

���

�

������ #	�
������������������

�


����������;������<���;������� ����8��������&������������	���� ��������� ������� 2��� ������������ ���8��������-�

����)��������:�35C������������;���������������������������2,������/C��������������;���������2������������2���������

�����)�>��� �����������������;�����������;���������������� ������������������������� ���;����� ������������� ���

��������	
�2����������,������:�2������<������;��<��������������2����:������������2������������;�)��

�

?����������	
��������� �
��:���
� �������������������������� ��������������.����
� =41CA��2� �������,����;���;���� ���

8�������� -� ����� ����� ��
� 	���,��� �2� ���� 8�������� &�������)� ����� ��������� ;���� 1 C� �2� ������ ���������

����������:� 64C��2� ���������� ����� ����������� ���
���� ��� 8��������-���������� 35C��2� ���������� ����� �����������

���
�����,������8��������-�����)��

�

#�����6B�;
��
��������
�
�E����
�����
������
�	����������������
��
��������D�����������������

� ����(����������� A�����������
��
�

-��������
����������

����
��
�������
����������.�
����/�

����
��
�������
����������
.�����������/�

� ��,��� C� C� C� C� C�

(���� /�3� 35C� 1 C� 41C� 64C� 35C�

*��� �6� � C� /5C� �C� /4C� �1C�

������2������������ 6� /C� /C� /C� /C� �C�

#������ =  � !  � !  � !  � !  � !  �

�

�

����$� ��������	���
�����������!��
�����������

�


�7��������������2����D�����������������������
����������������8��������-�������,����������������)�'�2,������

�C����
�������������������������������,������8��������-�����)��2�����������������:���7�;�������
�������

?����
,���7:�2�,����������
,���7������;�����@�������0�����)�����2�,��;���;�������
������������
,���7�

;������<�����������������;�����;��������
�;�������
���)������������������������22��������;��O�
��2���J�

����������J�������<�J������������,7�

�

&��������������������������
����������������2���2�������2���������:�������
�������������)��

�

#�����:B�#�����	�������������
������

����B�: � ����
��
�����������������.�
����/� ����
��
�����������������.��������
���/�

� ��,��� C� ��,��� C�

������2�2�����I��������� /�� ��C� 6�  �C�

������ �4� ��C� 5� / C�

8-8I@,������,��� �� 3C� �� 3C�

$��������
��������������� /� �C� �� 3C�


��2����������=�������I���������A� �� /C� �� 3C�

������ �� /C� �� �C�

#������ 89� 9 2� !�� � 2�

�

�

�

�

24



�

�

���

�

����%� &�
������������

�


�������������
�����������������8��������-������������������������)�����������������������)�'����������������

�2������;��������������	
����������
�����,������8��������-������=���)��2��)53�������A)��

�

+;������� �������� ���� ������ �����2� ������� 2����5)��� ��,��� 2��� ������ ���������� ��� 6)�1� ��,��� 2��� �����������

���
���������������,������8��������-�����)��

�

#������>B����������������
��	�������3�������

����������
��
��	����������� ���
�� ��������
.
����/�

)�
����� )�1�����

+�
����������������
�/ � 5)��� �� 3�

�������������������������=���8-�A�
����  )34� �� �/�

�������������������������=�,������8-�A�
�3�  )�1� �� ���

+�
����������������
�/� 6)�1� 5� ���

'��������������� /44� �)1 � �� �/�

�

�

����'� #	�
�����������	
������

�

�����������.����
��2�������������������������������;��<������;������������������=3/CA)��

�

���2�= �CA��2�������
�������������������������������	
��������������������������
����2�=� CA���������������	
�

�����)��

�

���2��2�������������������
�����������������8��������-�������
������
�;��<������;���������8��������&��������

2���� ������ �������������� 	���:�;������ �� ������ =55CA�,���� ������ ���)����
�3C�,��������� 2�����2��,	����

���������)��

�

���� ��.����
� �2� ���������� ����������� ���
���� �,������ 8�������� -� ����� ���������� ��� ;����� ���� 8��������

&��������	
�������=61CA)�'�K,������,�������������)��

�

#�����9B�)��
�������	����
���������������������

� ����(����������� A�����������
��
�

-��������
����������

����
��
�������
����������.�
����/�

����
��
�������
����������
.�����������/�

� ��,��� C� C� C� C� C�

?��<��� �/1� �/C� 3/C� �C�  �C� �C�

����=����)������	�<�A� 3�� /3C� 6C�  �C� 55C� / C�

������ 63� /5C�  C� � C� 6C� 61C�

8,�I�������������� ��� �C� �C� �C� /C� 3C�

8��
���� �� �C� /C� �C� �C� �C�

������ 6� /C� /C� �C� 3C� �C�

������� 5��� ���C� ���C� ���C� ���C� ���C�

�

�

�

�

25



�

�

�/�

�

����(� �	�)�*�+��������������
��	���
�

�

�����
����������2���������,������������������
�����,�����������<�-������������)�����,����2������������;���

����������������������������
���������������,������8��������-�����)��

�

#�����7B�%����	�@��,���*������
����

� ����(����������� A�����������
��
�

-��������
����������

����
��
�������
����������.�
����/�

����
��
�������
����������
.�����������/�

� ��,��� C� C� C� C� C�

(��� / � 5�C� ��C� 5�C� �5C� 61C�

*��  4� 1�C� 36C� 66C� 33C� 55C�

������� 3�� ���C� ���C� ���C� ���C� ���C�

�
�

����,� -
����	���
��������������

�

&���������������2�,����,���	�,������������2��������������2�����������2������������������;�����������������������=6�C�

�2���������������A)��

�

'�2,�������1C��2�����������������������������;���������<��;�����I;�����2���,������������	�����������������,�����2�

��2����������	�,������������������C��������������;�������������2���,���������������)�

�

>���� ��� 2�;��� ����������� ���������� �������:� 	������:� �,������ ����L����:� ����L���� �������� ��� ���� %�������

"�2���������������)��

�

#�����! B�&
	�������
�����������������	�
���������������
��

� ����(�����������
�
.	��"��//�

A�����
������
��
�

-��������
����������

����
��
�������
����������.�
�
���/�

����
��
�������
����������
.�����������/�

� ��,��� C� C� C� C� C�

>���������������������������� �3�� 6�C� ��C� 3/C� 6�C� 35C�

0�����<��;������ 6�� /�C� 5 C�  C� /�C� �C�

*�;����������=���A� 55� ��C� �3C�  C� 6C� 3C�

������2���,��� /5� 3C� ��C� 5C� �C� �C�

0��2�������	����,��� �4� 6C� �5C� /C� /C� �C�

"�������I;�	����� �5� �C�  C� �C� �C� �C�

�����������2���,��� ��� 5C� 6C� 5C� �C� �C�

��������	
� 6� /C� �C� /C� 6C� 3C�

��������  � /C� 5C� �C� /C� �C�


����I	�������  � /C� 5C� �C� /C� �C�

�,����������L���� �� �C� �C� /C� �C� �C�

&���L�������=���A� /� �C� �C� �C� /C� �C�

%�������"�2�)�������� /� �C� �C� �C� �C� �C�

������ �� �C� �C� �C� �C� �C�

�

����2�,����������������������������������������,������2���2���������;������<�����������2
�����)�������;�����

�,��������,	�=/�����������AJ��,�����������=���������AJ�����������
�=���������A)�

�

26



�

�

�5�

�

�2����������������������������������,������������������������,�����2���2��������:�����������������;�	�������������
�

�����������)����
�;�����8��������&��������=5�����������AJ�%�����8��������=/�����������AJ�8��������-������O�?���F��

��������P�=���������AJ������,������?�����=���������A)�

�

�

����0� 1��
������������!�����

�

�������:�������������������������2����������������= 1CA���������������������������8��������&��������������������

������	�2��������������2����������)��

�

#�����!!B�;
�
�������������
������

� ����(�����������
�
.	��"��//�

A�����������
��
�

-��������
����������

����
��
�������
����������.�
�
���/�

����
��
�������
����������
.�����������/�

� ��,��� C� C� C� C� C�

?������������������,��� � 5C�  C� �C� �C� �C�

������������
� � ��C� �1C�  C� �5C� 3C�

�����;��<� � �6C� �4C� ��C� �5C� 3C�

?����������������� � �5C� �5C� �6C� �C� 3C�

&��������������������� �  1C� �6C� 6�C� 6 C� 1 C�

�

���
�5C��2�������������������������������������;������������������,���������C�����������������������������
)��

�

�

�����/� �������!�
���	���
�����
�.������
�*���!��

�


����������;������<�������������
����������������������
����������������8��������-������������,��
)�"��������� 3�

����������� ���������� /�� ��22������ ������)� >���
D������ �������� �2� ������ ���������� ���������� ������ ������:�

���������;����5�C��2���
����������������:�/�C��2������������������������������
�������8��������-����������/ C�

�2������������������������������
�����,������8��������-�����)�'�������������������������������	���;��

�

�� 8��������>��������= ������������:�5�CA�

�� ��������I��������=/1�����������:��1CA�

�� ����������
�=/������������:�� CA�

�� 8�����������2�&��������=�4�����������:��/CA�

�� �������,�������������=�/�����������:�3CA�

�� %���������������
�=�������������:�1CA�

�� 8�����������������=4�����������:�6CA�

�� 0���������8��������8�<�������=3�����������:� CA�

�� >���8�
�
�����������	�����=1�����������:��CA�

�� >���	����=6�����������:��CA�

�� �������������2��������= �����������:�5CA�

�� 8��������>������=������������:�5CA�

�� ����<���=5�����������:�/CA�

�� �������>��������=5�����������:�/CA�

�� ������
������	�<��������=5�����������:�/CA�

�� ������
����"���=5�����������:�/CA�

�� ������0���������8���������������=5�����������:�/CA�

27



�

�

���

�

�� 8,��������������<��=/�����������:��CA�

�� ����������,������������=/�����������:��CA�

�� ��,�����>������=���������:��CA�

�

�

�<=� ���
�������	�����
��

�

�����,���
���,���� ����	����� ��������������2������������������������2� �����������;����� ������������������

����E���������7��������F)����������������;���������������������2��������2���:�;������QF���
�����F�=������������

�����������������A����� QF���
�����F�=�����������������������������F:�����;���������2��������������=�,���2�

 A����	������,�����)��

�

������ 2��
�����
����������!�
�

�

�����DK,��������2������������������������������������������������������ E����F���� E���
�����F:�;������2,������

�3C��������������E�������F)����������������2���������������;����)�5)��

�

#�����!�B����
��
���
����
�����
������
�����
��

(��
�����
�� �

8���� �4��

%��
������=�A� 5C�

�����=/A� 6C�

'�������=5A� �3C�

@����=�A� 5/C�

%��
������= A� ��C�

&���� �)�5�

�

�

������ �	�)�*�+����2�����

�

���
� 55� ����������� ;���� �	��� ��� �������� ��� ��������� ���<� -� ����� 

����)� ���� ����������� ;��� ����

�������������������������������2��)�5�2��� ����������	����
����������2����<���:�;����15C�������� ������ E���
�

����F)�������������������������2������������������,��2�������
�;����)6�:�;����1�C�����������������������

E���
�����F)�

�

#�����!=B����
��
���
��
��@��,���*����(������

@��,���*���� �������������������� �
�����F������

8���� 55� 55�

%��
������=�A� 5C� �C�

�����=/A� 1C� �C�

'�������=5A� 1C� 4C�

@����=�A� ��C� /�C�

%��
������= A� 15C� 1�C�

&���� �)�5� �)6��

�

�

28



�

�

� �

�

������ ��3
���������������!�
�

�

'��,��������DK,��������2����������������������������	����
�����,��2,�������2���2����������	�,���������������

����������E����F����E���
�����F)��

�

���������������2�������������	����
��2���2���������2�������������;����)�4)�"���������2�����,��2,�������2�����

��2��������:����������������;����)�/)��

�

#�����!8B���������������
�����	��
�����	����
������������

� ��������������	��
	�� %��	��
�����	��
	��

8���� / 5� /�5�

%��
������=�A� /C� �C�

�����=/A�  C�  C�

'�������=5A� �4C� �3C�

@����=�A� 5�C� 55C�

%��
������= A� ��C� �5C�

&���� �)�4� �)�/�

�

�

����$� ���!����
������3
�����
!�
��
���

�

��������� ������ 2��� ���� ������	����
� �2� �,	���� ��������;���5)61)�
�7�
D2�,�� �������� �2� ����������� ������ �����

����������E����F����E���
�����F)�

�

�����������2��������������������2���������;������������������������������������2�5)33)��

�

#�����!6B����
��
���
���������

� �������������� ����
��
����

8���� ���� ����

%��
������=�A� �C� �C�

�����=/A� �3C� �/C�

'�������=5A� ��C� �1C�

@����=�A� 5�C� 51C�

%��
������= A� 5�C� 55C�

&���� 5)61� 5)33�

�

�

����%� 4
����	�
��
��

�

���2��2����� ����������� ������ ���� �������2������������������ ���������������� E���
�����F������� 2,������5 C�

������������E����F:�����������������������������2��)55)�

�

����K,����
��2����������������������������;�������������������
�	
����������������;����36C��������������E����F�

���E���
�����F)����������������������������2��)5��	
���������������)�

�

29



�

�

�6�

�

�

�

#�����!:B����
��
���
��
������
��
��

� *�
��� G�������

8���� �6�� �6��

%��
������=�A� �C� �C�

�����=/A� /C� �C�

'�������=5A� �/C� ��C�

@����=�A� 5 C� 56C�

%��
������= A�  �C�  �C�

&���� �)55� �)5��

�

�

����'� 5	����
��

�


���������������	���� �����������2�������������� ����K,����
�������	���������������������2��)�1)�
�����
D

���������������2� ����������� ����������� ���� �������2� ���������������	��� ���	�� E����F� ��� E���
�����F:�;������

16C����������������K,����
����	��E����F����E���
�����F)�

�

���� ������� 2��� ���� ���,�� 2�������
� �2� ���� ��������� 2���������� ;��� �������
� ��;��� ��� �)�6� 2��� ���� �����������

=�������� 2���� 5)16� ��� �)3�A)� 
�����
� �������� �2� ���� ����������� ����������� ���� ���,�� 2��� ����
� �2� ����

���������������������E����F����E���
�����F)�

�

#�����!>B����
��
���
�������
��

� *�
��� G������� '�����

8���� ��/� ��4� ��4�

%��
������=�A� �C� �C� �C�

�����=/A� 5C� �C� 5C�

'�������=5A� �4C� /�C� /6C�

@����=�A� 5�C� 5 C� 5�C�

%��
������= A� ��C� ��C� 54C�

&���� �)�1� �)�1� �)�6�

�

�

����(� �!��	

��
6����
������!�
��

�

����������.�
�����;��������;����46C������������������������.�
������2�������������� E����F����E���
�����F:�

����������������������������2��)�6)��

�

#�����!9B����������
?����
��������

���������
?����
�� �

8���� /45�

%��
������=�A� �C�

�����=/A� �C�

'�������=5A� �C�

@����=�A� � C�

%��
������= A�  �C�

&���� �)�6�

30



�

�

�1�

�

����,� &�)���	
�����
�)���

�


���������� ;���� �������� ��� �������� ��� ;���� ���
� ����� ��<��� ��� ��.�
��� �	�,�� ������ ������ ��� ;����� ����

��������� ��� 8�������� -� ����)� "�� ������ /3�� ����������� ���������� ��� ��� ��22������ �������)� ������ ����

����������	���;��

�

���
���
�)�������	3����.������
�#	�	���
�7.	��"��,$������	����8�

�

�� '����������=� ������������:� 5CA�

�� '�������������	���������2�������������=1������������:�/ CA�

�� ����,���
�������=66�����������:�/5CA�

�� "��������������=5������������:���CA�

�� @����2�������������=//�����������:�3CA�

�� ?�������������I?����������,��=�3�����������:�6CA�

�� 
�����������22������2���8��������-������=�5�����������:� CA�

�� @����2����
���������������=1�����������:�/CA�

�� ����,����=6�����������:�/CA�

�� "�������������=5�����������:��CA�

�� ��������F��������=/�����������:��CA�

�� ����	�������=���������:�N�CA�

�


����������;���������������������������������
�������������
�������������������������	�,�����������������

����� ���
� 2���� ����� �����������)� "�� ������ ���
� 61� ����������� ���������� ��� ����� K,������)� �;���
D2����

��22���������������;������������������)���������������������������	���;��

�

���
�����	�����	����
����������
�
���������!���
��7.	���'(8�

�

�� �������������������I2�������<�-������=�������������:��6CA�

�� &����������I���,���
�=3�����������:��/CA�

�� ��,�����2����������������
�������IF'��,�F�����;��������=3�����������:��/CA�

�� *���������������������I;�	������������������2���������=1�����������:���CA�

�� *������,�����������<����=6�����������:�4CA�

�� *������,������������������������������=6�����������:�4CA�

�� �����	������I2��������
�����= �����������:�1CA�

�� *������,�������������������������<�= �����������:�1CA�

�� �����,������22���O�����,�����	,����=5�����������:��CA�

�� ������������,��=5�����������:��CA�

�� *������,�������������������=/�����������:�5CA�

�� &����������������������������=/�����������:�5CA�

�� &����;������������2����,������=/�����������:�5CA�

�� &����	,���I������	�������2,�����=/�����������:�5CA�

�� ���<�-������;��������
����������I�����2�����������F��������=/�����������:�5CA�

�� *��������	��	������������������������=/�����������:�5CA�

�� '�����������������7��������=/�����������:�5CA�

�� ���<��������7��������=���������:��CA�

�� �
��������������������=���������:��CA�

�� 
��������,����������������=���������:��CA�

�� 0����;�	������;�,���	��������������=���������:��CA�

�� &,����;���������,��=���������:��CA�

31



�

�

�3�

�

=<� ��)@�#&#�*�(%*'�+�*�(%A#(�
�

=<!� ��������������	����

�

������ ����������
�

�

�2�����/:4/1�������������;���������������������,���
:������DK,�������=15CA�;����2�������������������

�,������8��������-�����J����������������,����������������K,������=������;����8*�:�8*/�����8*5�

���������A)�"��2�������������
��2�����8��������&������������������������������/�C��2������,�����)�����

��������������������,��������������������
����������2�������������,��������/�C�2��,��������������������������

�����	������,����������	������,��������������������������)�

�

#�����!7�B�%H�����������������
�������
���

�� ���
�� 2� � � �

?����
,���7� � /� //C� ����;����=����
����
�"����A� 3� N�C�

@�������0������ 56 � �1C� +��	
������ 3� N�C�


,���
� �31� 4C� 0���������� 3� N�C�

9���� �63� 3C� (��<������D�*����� 3� N�C�

�����
,���7� � 1� 3C� 
�������� 3� N�C�

���������� �/�� 6C� 0�������������� 6� N�C�

����7� 31� �C� (��<������D�
�,��� 6� N�C�

����2��������� �4� /C� ��������"�������  � N�C�

8��<������ �3� /C� ���������  � N�C�

8,�<������������ 51� /C� +,�����  � N�C�

8��2��������� 5�� /C� ����2���������  � N�C�

���	����������� /6� �C� 0������������  � N�C�

+������ /6� �C� &����
�����  � N�C�


��������=����,�����8������A� / � �C� 
��22��  � N�C�

?�����O�
�,��� / � �C� �
���-�?����  � N�C�

?��������� /�� �C� ?��������������  � N�C�

*���������������� /�� �C� ")�)?)� �� N�C�

�72��������� �4� �C� *��������������� �� N�C�

+����� �3� �C� ?�����O�&��� 5� N�C�


,22��<� �6� �C� �,�	���� /� N�C�

@��,������������ � � �C� �,������ /� N�C�

*��2��<� � � �C� 
���������� /� N�C�

?��;��<������ �5� �C� (��<������O������ /� N�C�

?����&�������� �5� �C� ����������=�����%����
A� �� N�C�

(��<������D�?���� �/� �C� "�����2�&��� �� N�C�

@�������&���������� ��� �C� ?�����D�*����� �� N�C�

#����� �5 76� � � � !  2�

�

32



�

�

�4�

�

�������������������������;����������
��2���;�������������������������$9�;����������������������������2�

�,������2����?����
,���7���������@�������0����������)�>�2�
��,���
�������������;����2�������������=����

��	����4	A)�

�

#�����!7�B��������������������������
�������
����

� ���
�� 2�

$������
�������2�'������� �� 3C�

>������ 5� 6C�

���,	�����2�"������� 5� 6C�

$������ 5� 6C�

',�������� /� �C�

��,����� /� �C�

�����9���� /� �C�

*����������� /� �C�

(����� /� �C�

'�	����� �� /C�

8������� �� /C�

8����,�� �� /C�

���	�������������2�2������$

�� �� /C�

+�����<� �� /C�

@�����
� �� /C�

@������ �� /C�

0,7��	�,��� �� /C�


��������� �� /C�


;��L������� �� /C�

R��	�	;�� �� /C�

������  �� ���C�

�

�

������ ���������
��*���
����

�

��������������F5 D� F�;��������������������������������=���������������C��2�����������A���������

��.����
�=65CA�;��������)��

�

#������ B��������������

� ���
�� 2�

�6D/�� ��1�  C�

/ D5�� 3�3� /3C�

5 D��� �:�35� ��C�

� D �� 655� //C�

  D6�� �/�� �C�

6 D1�� �4� �C�

1 M� �� N�C�

#����� �57��� !  2�

�

�

33



�

�

/��

�

#������!B���
����

� ���
�� 2�

&���� �:35�� 65C�

>������ �:�6/� 51C�

������ � /:34/� ���C�

�

=<�� #����	��������

�

������ 9
�:
���������!�
��

�

'���������������������<��;������;������������������	
�;������,������	�������;�����2����������:�2����;���	
�

<��;������ 2������������������ ��<��������)�>������D����������,�����:� �������������������;����;����� E>���������

����������������������F�2����;���	
�����E"�������I;�	����F)��

�
#�������B�(�������	�,
�E�������	����
��

� *�����
�� "�
�*�����
��

� ���
�� 2� ���
�� 2�

0�����<��;������ 5/6� ��C� //�� ��C�

>�������������������������������� /56� 5�C� 1/6� 5�C�

*�;�������������I�2���,��� �65� /�C� 6/� 5C�

"�������I;�	����� 6�� 3C� �1�� //C�

������2���,��I���������� 54�  C� 65� 5C�

0��2�������	����,��� �3� /C� 56� /C�

�����������2���,��I���������� �/� /C� /3� �C�

�,����������L���� ��� �C� 53/� �3C�

&���L����������I2���,��I���������� 3� �C� ��� /C�

������� 6� �C�  � N�C�


����I	������� 5� N�C� 6� N�C�

%�������"�2���������������� �� N�C� �� N�C�

��������	
� D� D� 5� N�C�

������ �6� 6C� / �� �/C�

������ 4/4� � /:5�/� �

��"�
�"��	�
���
�
���	�
������

�

�

������ �!��
�����������

�

>���
D���������������2����D����������,���������
������8��������-�����J�.,����������K,������=/1CA����
���

������������������������,������8��������-�����)���������������������������������.,���2���������
:����,������

�������������������
)���

�

#������=B�����
��
��������

� ���
�� 2�


��
������8��������-������ 4�1� �5C�


��
����,������8��������-������  16� /1C�

%�������2���������
����
� 6��� 5�C�

������ /:�55� ���C�

34



�

�

/��

�

�

'��,������2��2������,���������
�����������������8��������-���������
��������������= 5CA)�!,����������K,������

���
����������������2���2������������������=/1CA)�

�

#������8B�#�����	�������������
������

� ���
�� 2�

������ �34�  5C�

������2�2������������������ /�1� /1C�

8-8I@,������,��� �/5� �5C�


��2����������=�������I'��������A� �1� /C�

�������I�������� �/� �C�

�,	I"��� ��� �C�

(�,���������� 4� �C�

8���I(����� /� N�C�


��2����������=������
�������7I%������A� �� N�C�

$��������
��������������� �� N�C�

������ 3� �C�

������ 4�4� ���C�

�

�

������ &�
��������!��
����������

�

�,������;������
����������������8��������-�������,����������������������������������)15���������������

����)����2����
���2�����������������53C����
���2����;��������)��

�

#������6B�A�
��
��	�����
��
�������

� ���
�� 2�

��*����� �6 �  �C�

/�*������ 5� � 53C�

5�*������ 64� 3C�

��*������ �6� /C�

 �*������ 3� �C�

6�*������  � �C�

1�*������ 5� N�C�

3�*������ �� N�C�

4�*������ D� D�

��M�*������ 5� N�C�

������ 4� � ���C�

�

�,�����������������������.,��������3���,������������
��2������������������������
)��

�

�

����$� #���������	
������

�

���2��2���������������������,������;��<���2�������������������������,����������:�;�������6�C��2����D������

�,��������������	
����������������������)���

�

35



�

�

//�

�

�

�

#������:B�)��
�������	����
������

�� ����*����
��
��� ����
��
�*�����
�� "�
�����
��
�*�����
��

�� ���
�� 2� ���
�� 2� ���
�� 2�

���I%��I&�����
���� �: 6��  5C� /16� 5 C� �:/33� 6�C�

������ 141� /1C� �1� 6C� 1�4� 5 C�

?��<��� �� � � C� �� �  �C� ��� /C�

8,��
������� 6�� /C� /�� 5C� 56� /C�

8��
���� �3� �C� �1� /C� �� N�C�

��������,�� 4� N�C� D� D� 4� N�C�

(����I8���� /� N�C� D� D� /� N�C�

������ 55� �C� / � 5C� 3� N�C�

������ /:4/3� ���C� 14�� ���C� /:�55� ���C�

�

�������������=56CA��2��������D����������,���������������	
�����������������������,�����������<�-������

������)�$��������������	
�����������;�����;���������������=���
�5CA)�

�

�
#������>B�%����	�@��,���*������
����

� ����
��
�*�����
�� "�
�����
��
�*�����
��

� ���
�� 2� ���
�� 2�

(��� 4� 5C� � /� 56C�

*�� /65� 41C� 3/�� 6�C�

������ /1/� ���C� �/15� ���C�

�

�

����%� &���������������
���
�5����

�

������.����
��2����D����������,������=1�CA����	����������������;�������������,�����������8��������-�����)�

�

#������9B�A�������������

� ���
�� 2�

(��� 63�� 1�C�

*�� /53� /6C�

������ 4�3� ���C�

�

�

36



�

�

/5�

�

=<=� ���
�������	�����
�

�

������ 2��
�����
���

�


�����
D��7����������2���������������1�C��2��,������2�����,������8��������-�������������������������������

��������������������E����F����E���
�����F:���������������������������2��������������2��)�5�����5)4��

�����������
)�

�

#������7B�(��
�����
��

� *�����
�� "�
3*�����
��

8����  //� � �:4/ � �

&���� �)�5� � 5)4�� �

%��
������=�A� �� N�C� /5� �C�

�����=/A� � � 5C� �/�� 6C�

'�������=5A� ��4� /�C� ��4� //C�

@����=�A� /54� �6C� 3�3� �/C�

%��
������= A� � 3� 5�C�   �� /4C�

�

�

������ 4!�
����3
������

�


����2��������������������	����
��2���2���������������������������������,��2,������;��������������
�������

�,�����)��������������������������������������2��)54�2���������	����
��2���2��������������)�/�2���,��2,������

�2���2��������)�*��D����������,���������������������������������2��)/1�2���������	����
��2���2�������������

�)5��2���,��2,�������2���2��������)�

�
�
#�����= �B���������������	��
	�������
�

� *�����
�� "�
3*�����
��

8���� 13�� � /:�4�� �

&���� �)54� � �)/1� �

%��
������=�A� /� N�C� /� N�C�

�����=/A� 5� N�C� 5�� �C�

'�������=5A� 15� 4C� /54� ��C�

@����=�A� 5��� ��C� 4� � � C�

%��
������= A� 545�  �C� 31�� �/C�

�
#�����= �B�%��	��
�����	��
	�������
�

� *�����
�� "�
3*�����
��

8���� 13�� � /:�33� �

&���� �)�/� � �)5�� �

%��
������=�A� �� N�C� �� N�C�

�����=/A�  � �C� /�� �C�

'�������=5A� 6 � 3C� /�1� ��C�

@����=�A� 5��� 54C� 4��� � C�

%��
������= A� ��3�  /C� 4��� ��C�

�

37



�

�

/��

�

������ ���!����
������3
�����
!�
��
���

�

����������	����
��2���������;����������,�����;�����������������������
��2��������������������2���������)�

�����������
�/6C��2���������������/1C��2����D����������,����������������������	����
��2�������������������

E����F����E���
�����F)�������������������;���/)14�����/)3�������������
)�&������;�����;������������
�

�����2����;���������������������2��,	�����������)��
�
�
#�����=!�B���������������	���������

� *�����
�� "�
3*�����
��

8���� 1��� � /:��4� �

&���� /)14� � /)3�� �

%��
������=�A� 4�� �5C� /1�� �5C�

�����=/A� /�3� 5�C� 6/�� 5�C�

'�������=5A� /�3� 5�C�  4�� /4C�

@����=�A� �/�� �1C� 51/� �3C�

%��
������= A� 6�� 4C� �4�� 4C�

�
#�����=!�B�����
��
�����	���������

� *�����
�� "�
3*�����
��

8���� 6�5� � �:453� �

&���� 5)6�� � 5)63� �

%��
������=�A� ��� /C� /5� �C�

�����=/A� �/� 1C� 14� �C�

'�������=5A� /�6� 5/C� 1/6� 53C�

@����=�A� /14� �5C� 135� ��C�

%��
������= A� ��/� �6C� 5/1� �1C�

�
�
�

=<=<8� @��,�
����������
�

�

���
�4���������������������������������������<���J��2�������������;�������������22���������2����;�����

������	����
�����������2����<����2����E���
�����F����E���
�����F������������������������������2�5�������)�

������;�������������22���������2������������������,	.�������������D����������,�����)�������������������

��������������������,��;����)���������)��

�

�������������������������������������2�5)1 ��,���2� �2����������,���2�����
�2������<����;����������D

����������,���������������������������������2��)/ )�

�
� �
#�����=��B�������������F������	����,�
��

� ����
��
�*�����
�� "�
�����
��
�*�����
��

8���� 4� � � �� �

&���� 5)��� � �)��� �

%��
������=�A� 5� 55C� 5�� 1C�

�����=/A� D� D�  �� ��C�

'�������=5A� �� ��C� /3� 6C�

@����=�A� �� ��C� ��5� /5C�

%��
������= A� �� ��C� /53�  5C�

38



�

�

/ �

�

�
#�����=��B��
�����F'�����	���)�
���

� ����
��
�*�����
�� "�
�����
��
�*�����
��

8���� 3� � ��3� �

&���� 5)1 � � �)/ � �

%��
������=�A�
D� D� 5� N�C�

�����=/A�
�� �5C� �/� 5C�

'�������=5A�
/� / C� 64� �1C�

@����=�A�
5� 53C� ��5� /1C�

%��
������= A�
/� / C� //��  5C�

�

�

����%� 4
����	�
��
��

�

�����������������������������������������������D����������,������;�����������������������������2�

��������������;���E'������F)�������������������;�����������������	�������,����2��,������O�5)53�����

5)51������������
)�&��������������E'������F����E@���F�;������������������K,����
��2������������������)��

�
�
#�����==�B�*�
����	��
������
��
��

� *�����
�� "�
3*�����
��

8���� 1�/� � �:414� �

&���� 5)53� � 5)51� �

%��
������=�A� �1� /C� 5 � /C�

�����=/A� 31� �/C� /6�� �5C�

'�������=5A� 5��� �/C� 145� ��C�

@����=�A� / �� 5�C� 1�4� 56C�

%��
������= A� 16� ��C� �1/� 4C�

�
�
#�����==�B�G��������	��
������
��
��

� *�����
�� "�
3*�����
��

8���� 15 � � �:411� �

&���� 5) �� � 5) �� �

%��
������=�A� ��� /C� 5�� /C�

�����=/A�  4� 3C� �64� 4C�

'�������=5A� /35� 54C� 1  � 53C�

@����=�A� /46� ��C� 3�6� ��C�

%��
������= A� 35� ��C� /�1� ��C�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

39



�

�

/6�

�

����'� 5	����
��

�

'���������������������D����������,�����:������������2��������������������������	���������������K,����
�����

���,���2���������)��

�
#�����=8�B�*�
����	�������
��

� *�����
�� "�
3*�����
��

8���� 5��� � �:�61� �

&���� �)�5� � 5)4�� �

%��
������=�A� �� N�C� /5� �C�

�����=/A� � � 5C� �/�� 6C�

'�������=5A� ��4� /�C� ��4� //C�

@����=�A� /54� �6C� 3�3� �/C�

%��
������= A� � 3� 5�C�   �� /4C�

�
�
#�����=8�B�G��������	�������
��

� *�����
�� "�
3*�����
��

8���� /4�� � �:�51� �

&���� 5) 5� � 5) 6� �

%��
������=�A� 6� /C� ��� �C�

�����=/A� � �  C� 63� 1C�

'�������=5A� �/�� �5C� ���� ��C�

@����=�A� ��4� 53C� �/ � ��C�

%��
������= A� 56� �/C� �//� �/C�

�
�
#�����=8�B�'�����	�����
����	�������
��

� *�����
�� "�
3*�����
��

8���� /14� � �:�/3� �

&���� 5)�6� � 5)�3� �

%��
������=�A� 6� /C� �5� �C�

�����=/A� �1� 6C� 3�� 3C�

'�������=5A� �5�� �3C� ���� �5C�

@����=�A� 33� 5/C� 51 � 51C�

%��
������= A� 5�� �/C� �� � ��C�

�
�

����(� �!��	

��
6����
��

�
����������.�
������2�����������;�������������������,�����)��
�
#�����=6B����������
?����
���	�����
��
�)����
�
�

� *�����
�� "�
3*�����
��

8���� 14�� � /:�5�� �

&���� �)6�� � �)�1� �

%��
������=�A� �� N�C� 5� N�C�

�����=/A� �� N�C� ��� �C�

'�������=5A� //� 5C� ��4�  C�

@����=�A� /6�� 55C� 3 1� ��C�

%��
������= A�  �4� 6�C� ���3�  �C�

40



�

�

/1�

�

�

8<� ���"�)&��&)@��#�

�

8<!� ���
�����������1��
�������

��

?���������7���������2��������������������2�����,������������������
�������8��������-�����:�������������

�7������,�����������������������	���56�������	���51���2��������7������,���������,�����������,������������

����8��������&�������)������������7������,�������,���������	
���������2����
)�>��������������������������

��������2����
�;���2�,������	���)���������:�;�������2����,�����:���������������������2����
�;����)15�������)��

�

�

$����� 2����	����!�
����*�!	
���

�

'����������������������������:������7������
�3�:�������������������;��������������������������3�'����)��

����������������������,���2�2����������������������2�2,���,�����������������,�����������������:���,���������

;���.,�������������	���,�������	�,��;�������������;�����<���������)��

�

���������������������������B3)16�����������������������)��������������������������2��7������,���;����

��;����������,��������2�2������������<����������
�=�������������14C��2��������7������,��A)�
����������

������������2���������
����
�=���������,����	������
����������2�������������������������
�����������������

�����������,������8��������-�����A������������������B�5)53���������������8��������-�������,�����������

����)��

�

$��,���������
:������������2��7������,���;�������������������������������
�����������������8��������-�

����)�?����������������������2�B1 )�3�����������������:�������������7������,���=�,���������	
��)��A�����

���������������B�/�)�1�;�������������������������������������14C��2����������)��

�

#�����=:B��1��
����������������
�������������
��	�������

�
*�����
��� ����
��
��.1�!<88�
��
��/� -���

�������-�����<���� B6)34� 14C� B/1)3 � ��C� ������  5C�


�������� B�)  � �3C� B3)6��  C� ����	� /5C�

���������I������� B�)5/� �C� B6)�4�  C� ���
	� //C�

�������������� B�)��� �C� B/)�5� �C� ���
�� /C�

'������������S� D� �C� B1 )�3� 14C� D� �C�

#����������������
�� 49<>:� ���C� 4!� <!>� ���C� ������� ���C�

�����������	�
��
��
�	�����	���������
��
����������������������	
��	
��������	����
��
�
��������	�������������	�
���

�

"�����������������������	��������8��������-����������������������������,�����������������������7������,���

����,�������:��������	����������������7������,������H����D;�����H�������<��
���������	�����������
;�
����

�������������������������������	������<���������)�

�

>,���������:���������,����������������������������������������2���;��������8��������&��������;�������

����������,������2���	����������������:��)�)�������������
����������
������
�����,��������������������)��

�

�

41



�

�

/3�

�

$����� 5��������������
��������

�

��������������������������������/�C��2�����1:6���8��������&���������,������;����������������������

��������	
�8��������-���������
���,���������������:��������������������;����H����D;�����H���������

�����	���2���������������������������,�������)��������7������,������������������������������	���	���;����

���,�����������������
)��

�

�����7������,�����������������������2������D����������,���������
�����������������8��������-�������2�

B// )4 ����	����������������������
��2��)15�������)�������.����������
��2��7������,���2������������
����

����������;���,��,���������
��������������:�����,������2�����C��2�����������������)����������������������

�2��7������,���;���������������������<����;���������,�����2���5�C��2�����������������)�

�

�������������7������,�����������������������2������D�������������D��
�������,������;���B��)�4)���������2�

�2������������������������������������,��;������;����������,��������2�2������������<�= �CA)�

�

#�����=:B��1��
����������������
�������������
��	�������

�
*�����
��� ����
��
��.1�!<>=�
��
��/� -���

�������-�����<���� B/5)13� 66C� B64)46� 5�C� B//)5/�  �C�


�������� B6)1�� �4C� B5�)�5� � C� B1)/4� �3C�

���������I������� B�)55� �/C� B/5)46� ��C� B��)  � / C�

�������������� B�)44� 5C� B3)55� �C� B�)55� 5C�

'������������S� D� �C� B34)61� ��C� D� �C�

#����������������
�� 4=6<9 � ���C� 4��6<76� ���C� 48!<87� ���C�

�����������	�
��
��
�	�����	���������
��
����������������������	
��	
��������	����
��
�
��������	�������������	�
���

�

�

$����� �������
	
���������	
�3��
�������

�

����������������������2�����8��������&������������������������������������������	�������������D���������

���������������7������,�������:�������,����
��,���
�;������������,�����������������2��������������2��3�

�������;���������������������	���51��������2)�"�������������������������,����
:���2�������������;��������<�
�

����,�����2����2��������;���������	������)�������;����'�������+���
������='+�A�;���������,���������

�����,����������	
���������������������,������'�����	��������=����'�A� ;������������������,����������	
�

������������	��)��� � � � � �

�

�����������,���
�2�,�����������
,���
��3�'����:������������,����
�����������	
��������2������51)/C�����

�����������������	
� /)�C)�"������������	���������,����������������������������������;���������
�����������	
�

����8��������&����������������,���
��2�,������������L��	������,����2����D�������������������������,������

���
����������������8��������-����������������������������������������������=���������2��)����������2��������������

�����)15��������2����,�����A)�����������2���2��������2�����������������������������������;�,�����������
�����������

����
,���
J�2����,�����������;�,������������������������	�2������������	��<�������������2����;����&����
)�


,	��K,����
����,����
��������������&����
:����
�����������	������������������������������
����=������	���

53�A)��

�

42



�

�

/4�

�

�������������������������	����������������������8��������-�����:�;����������;������,���;�������������,�����

8���������	�����2������������������������������<��������	�����������	��������������	��)��,������	����

������������������������������7������
��:13/�	��������������	��������������������������������8��������-�����)�

�

'���
�������������������,����
��������
,���
�=51)/CA������������������<�����������������,���5:115�	��������

;�������,��������
,���
��3�'�����/���:��:�/5��	������������,�������������������������/��4)��

�

#�����=>B��������������������������.�������������
�����/�

"�����	������� *�������������

������+,�%���8�������� �4�

&
������8�������� 3��

8�������������� 65�

���������8�,�������8��������  4�

8�������8������������
���� � /�

T,�����������8�������� 43�

�������8��������&��������������� 55��

+��%��������@�����8�������� /���

��������8�������� /�3�

������
�"���8��������
��2����� �5��

����9����������� 3 �

�������8�������� ��1�

8����?�������8��������������  /�

�����������8��������
��2����� ����

!,�
��"���8�������� /5��

�����������8�������������� 4��

"��<�����U��0���������������8���<�0����
8�������� �1�

������
������� 1��

�������
�������������� /�3 �

�������������
��������������������������
�����������8��������-������ �:13/�

�

#�����=9�B��������������������
���

-���� �� #
���+���� A����+���� 2��
��

��I�6I/���� >��� 14) C� 16)5C� �)5C�

��I�1I/���� 
��� 46)6C� 34)5C� 3)/C�

��I�3I/���� 
,�� 13)4C�  1) C� 51)/C�

��I�4I/���� &��� 1�)4C� 1 )6C� D�)3C�

'������� �� 9�<62� >8<>2� ! <62�

�

#�����=9�B��-*�

-���� �� #
���+���� A����+���� 2��
��

��I�6I/���� >��� B3�)�3� B35)5 � D/)6C�

��I�1I/���� 
��� B��/) 5� B45)36� 4)/C�

��I�3I/���� 
,�� B34)��� B3�)��� ��)�C�

��I�4I/���� &��� B31)4�� B3/)/ � 6)4C�

'������� �� B4�)3�� B3 )6�� 6)�C�

43



�

�

5��

�

#�����=9�B�*��@�*�

-���� �� #
���+���� A����+���� 2��
��

��I�6I/���� >��� B6�) 1� B65) 3� �)6C�

��I�1I/���� 
��� B44)�3� B35)3/� �3)/C�

��I�3I/���� 
,�� B1�)/�� B�6)�3�  /)�C�

��I�4I/���� &��� B6 )4�� B6/)�1� 6)�C�

'������� �� B1�)4�� B65)4�� �1)5C�

�

�

8<�� -���������
������������

�

�����������	��������������������7������,��:�����2��,���������,���������	
������������,�	����2����������������

�,�����)�����������������������2�����,�������������:���������������
�����7��,�������������2������������,�����������

���
�����������V�����;�����W������������������������������������������;�����������,�������2�	��������8��������-�

�����;�����������8��������&�������)��

�

8�������������,���
������;����������	���������2����;�����

�

#�����=7�(���������-���������
�����&������

#���������������� ��������������9 5   ��

�2�;���������������� ��������������55:6����

�	�E
��
�
�
3������
��� ��������������8:58  ��

�� �2�;�������
���������� ��������������5�:�����

�� �2�;���������������������������8-�� ���������������/:3����

�� �2�;�������������������������,������8-�� ����������������5:/����

"�
3������
����	�E
��
������
�
����
���������� ��������������8 57>:��

�� �2�;�������
���������� ��������������/4:�33��

�� �2�;���������������������������8-�� ����������������3:35/��

�� �2�;�������������������������,������8-�� ����������������/:6 6��

#������
3������
����1��
�������� �4�!587!5==7��

�� �2�;�������
���������� �B����54�: �4�

�� �2�;���������������������������8-�� �B��:�6�:/ 5��

�� �2�;�������������������������,������8-�� �B������5 : 51��

�

"�������:����D�������������������������������7������
�B�) ����������,�������������������8��������-���������;���������

8��������&�������)��

�

*��D����������,�����������������7������
�B15�: ����,�������������������8��������-�����������<������������������)��

�

�

�

�

44



�

�

5��

�

#�����8 B�*���������������-���������
�����&������

#����������
�
���

����� >5:  �

�2�;���������������� �: /��

�	�E
��
�
�
3������
��� :5 9 �

�� �2�;�������
���������� �����������������:3/���

�� �2�;���������������������������8-�� ����������������/:6����

�� �2�;�������������������������,������8-�� �����������������:6�/��

#������
3������
���1��
������� 4>=856!!�

�� �2�;�������
���������� B1 :613�

�� �2�;���������������������������8-�� B 4�:1/��

�� �2�;�������������������������,������8-�� B63:����

�

"������������+���������������������������������;��������8��������&�����������B/:// :4��)�

�

8
������������,��������������7������,����������������D����������=	��������������������,�����A:�����������	,������2�

�7������,����������������2����;����

�

#�����8!B�-����������
��	�������������1��
�������

������	��1��
�������

�������-�����<���� B3/5: 43� 51C�


�������� B554:� 6� � C�

���������I������� B5 �: 3 � �6C�

�������������� B �:�3�� /C�

'������������� B66/:/�1� 5�C�

#����� 4�5��6578 � !  2�

�

"���������������7������,������,�����	
�����������������,�����:�;��������������������������
����������8��������-�

�����	
��������������������)�'����7������
�B/��:����;���������	
�����������������������������,����������������

�2��������������������2����������	,��������)�'�2,������B/��:����;��������������������������2�

�����
���I����,�����������������������������;��������������
)��#
���������
��	��
�������
������
������
�5�

���
����
��-���������
�����&���������4�5:�6578 <�

�

�

8<=� #��������
������������

�

+���������������"����������,����;����������������������������G2�������,��G��2���������)�"��	����������:�

�������������������������������	��;�����������,���������������������
���������������������������������
�

D�2����7������	��;�����������������������;�����2��������������,����)�

&��
����������������������2,�����������;�����������,����������������������"�����)���������������������

��.,���������������+���������������"�������������,��������,	��K,����G��������
��������G��2������������

���������;���������������������
)��22�����������,��������2��������������������"��������K,�����������,��

��,�������������	�������������,��;���������
�����������������������������������������������;���������������

45



�

�

5/�

�

������
������2:��)�)������������,���������,���
�������)�?������,��������������2����������������������	���

����������,����������������,�����
�,�����������,��������������������"�����)��

8���������&������,�
F��@,����������.�����������������������,��������������������,����������2��)53����

������������2�������������������.����)�'���
����������,����������������8��������&��������+���������������

"������2��,���������������#��������
�����&������	�������	�4=5:�85   )�

�

�

46



CULTURE, TOURISM & 
ENTERPRISE OVERVIEW 
AND SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE 

Agenda Item 22 

 
Brighton & Hove City Council 

 

Subject: Statutory Local Economic Assessment Duty 

Date of Meeting: 30 September 2010 

Report of: Director of Housing, Culture and Enterprise 

Contact Officer: Name:  Paula Murray Tel: 29-2534 

 E-mail: paula.murray@brighton-hove.gov.uk 

Key Decision: No  

Wards Affected: All  

 
FOR GENERAL RELEASE 
 
1. SUMMARY AND POLICY CONTEXT: 
  
1.1 County Councils and Unitary Authorities have a new statutory duty to complete 

Local Economic Assessments from April 2010. The assessment will bring 
together and fill gaps in existing data and intelligence in order to provide a robust 
analysis of the Brighton & Hove economy. This will form part of future evidence 
for: reviewing city strategies and used to help shape priorities for future City 
Employment & Skills Plan-related interventions.  Most importantly, the timing of 
completing this thorough analysis aligns exactly with the forward looking data 
analysis work needed for shaping intelligent commissioning in the area of 
economic development at a time when, due to recessional impacts and public 
sector budget predictions, it is most needed. 

 
2. RECOMMENDATIONS: 
 
2.1 That the Committee notes the contents of the report and welcome the approach 

outlined in the report, to work closely with partners and maximise the benefit of 
this timely piece of work for the future intelligent commissioning intentions. 

 
3. RELEVANT BACKGROUND INFORMATION 

 
3.1 Background 

 
3.1.1 Central Government has provided funding of £65,000 through the 2010/11 Area 

Based Grant to support the completion of this piece of work. Government 
guidance indicates that the cost of completing the assessment should be in the 
range of £60 - £80k.  The funding allocated is to research the necessary data, 
build the knowledge base and undertake any analysis or development work 
needed. Local Economic Assessments are to be completed by March 2011.  

 

47



3.1.2 Local Authorities are expected to address a core set of themes in their 
assessment in order to ensure some degree of consistency and comparability is 
achieved across the country. The themes are as follows: 
§ Economic linkages 
§ Structure of local economy 
§ Enterprise and innovation 
§ Business needs 
§ Demography and community 
§ Labour market 
§ Skills 
§ Economic and social inclusion 
§ The natural and historic environment 
§ Low carbon economy 
§ Transport provision and other infrastructure 
§ Housing 
§ Overall economic competitiveness of the area 

 
These themes map easily onto the authority’s existing Core Priorities and 8 
future city outcomes.   

 
3.1.3 An additional condition for authorities such as Brighton and Hove that have a 

Futures Jobs Fund programme, was also to produce an Interim Work and Skills 
Plan for March 2010.  This is as a precursor to the full work and Skills Plan that 
will form part of the final Local Economic Assessment.  Brighton and Hove has 
completed this piece of work.  This will form the basis for the full plan to be 
completed which will in effect also be the same piece of work as the new 3 year 
City Employment and Skills Plan also due for updating this year.  The City 
Employment and Skills Plan links directly through to the Local Strategic 
Partnership. 

 
3.2 Process and timetable 
 
3.2.1 Action Plan and Data 

The Economic Development team has prepared Local Economic Assessment 
action plan by working with partners to define and agree Brighton & Hove’s 
functional economic area and reviewing datasets, identifying gaps in data and 
knowledge, and producing proposals to fill those gaps.  This is attached at 
Appendix 1. 
 

3.2.2 Consultation 
Full consultation with internal and external partners is a statutory duty as part of 
the Local Economic Assessment and will take place throughout its development.  
In terms of relationships with external partners; businesses and local 
partnerships, Brighton and Hove is already well placed with good working 
relationships already established.  Consultation and regular updates can be built 
into existing working structures and timetables in addition to tailored events.  The 
development of the Local Economic Assessment is also programmed into the 
cycle of Member meetings for update and consultation, the timetable for this is 
attached at Appendix 2. 

 
3.3 Outcomes and Relationship to Existing and Future Strategies 
 

48



3.3.1 Local Economic Assessments will equip Local Authorities and partners with a 
common understanding of local economic conditions, be they geographical, 
social or environmental, and their impact on economic growth. This 
understanding should lead to improved economic interventions, including better 
spatial prioritisation of investment to achieve sustainable development.  At this 
current time, when the city is still feeling the effects of the recession and with cuts 
predicted in public sector spending, this level of up to date and in depth analysis 
will be very much needed.  It will form the basis of the analysis needed to 
develop the commissioning approach with partners in the city at exactly the right 
time, both for the city council and the city. 

 
3.3.2 Economic flows usually overlap local authority boundaries, so that the functional 

area over which the local economy and its key markets operate does not 
necessarily adhere to these boundaries. The Local Economic Assessment 
provides Brighton & Hove with an opportunity to not only measure economic 
conditions with the city, but also to define and analyse its functional economic 
area. Based on previous analysis using travel-to-work, housing, and retail 
catchment data, this area is likely to consist of parts of East and West Sussex. 

 
3.3.3 The findings can also inform the parallel thinking on the development of Local 

Enterprise Partnerships as this develops, in terms of their desired remit both 
spatially and otherwise.   

  
3.3.4 There are a number of existing strategies that will also dovetail with this work – 

inform it and be informed by it; the city council’s corporate priorities, the 
Community Strategy, the Economic Strategy and the Local Development 
Framework Core Strategy in particular.  More specifically, the city’s City 
Employment and Skills Plan already fulfils the requirement to produce a Work 
and Skills Plan within the Local Economic Assessment.  

 
4. CONSULTATION 
  
4.1 Full consultation with internal and external partners is a statutory duty as part of 

the Local Economic Assessment and will take place throughout its development.  
 
5. FINANCIAL & OTHER IMPLICATIONS: 
 
 Financial Implications: 
 
5.1 The costs associated with the Local Economic Assessments are expected to be   

covered by Central Government Area Based Grant funding of £65,000 in 
2010/11. Funding would need to be identified for any work required following the 
assessments.  

 
Finance Officer Consulted: Anne Silley    Date: 30/06/10  

 
  Legal Implications: 
  
5.2 The Council is under a duty to prepare a Local Economic Assessment of its area 

under section 69 (1) of the Local Democracy, Economic Development and 
Construction Act 2009. A local authority must have regard to any guidance given 
by the Secretary of State as to: 

49



 
- what an assessment should contain and how it should be prepared 
- when to prepare an assessment 
- when to revise any assessment, or any part or aspect of an assessment.  

 
A local authority may revise the assessment, or any part or aspect of it, at any 
time. The process set out in the report is consistent with the legislation and the 
statutory guidance." 

 
Lawyer Consulted:  Carl Hearsum   Date: 05/07/10 

 
 Equalities Implications: 
 
5.3 The Local Economic Assessment provides an opportunity for the city council to 

be more informed of equalities issues relating to the local economy and target 
support accordingly. 

 
 Sustainability Implications: 
 
5.4  A duty of the Local Economic Assessment will be to include a section on ’Low 

Carbon Economy’. This compliments the Business Retention and Inward 
Investment Strategy, which has identified Environmental Industries as a growth 
sector for Brighton & Hove. 

 
  Crime & Disorder Implications:  
 
5.5  Any work that leads to the improvement of economic conditions in a location and 

an increase in employment opportunities, which this work is designed to do, is 
likely to have a positive impact on some of the causes of crime and disorder. 

 
 Risk & Opportunity Management Implications: 
 
5.6  A risk analysis will be prepared as part of the project action plan.  In addition, the 

identification of both risk and opportunity in an economic sense is what the 
assessment is designed to give. 

 
 Corporate / Citywide Implications: 
 
5.7 The new statutory duty for Local Authorities to complete Local Economic 

Assessments is viewed as a real opportunity to fill gaps in knowledge about the 
city economy and inform future interventions in order to achieve the strategic 
objectives outlined in the Local Area Agreement, City Employment & Skills Plan 
and Business Retention and Inward Investment Strategy. Having a robust 
analysis of local economic conditions will inform Brighton & Hove City Council 
and partners’ economic policies and interventions, to the benefit of the city. 

 
6. EVALUATION OF ANY ALTERNATIVE OPTION(S):  
  
6.1 Not applicable in this instance, the requirement to produce this assessment is a 

statutory duty. 
  

7. REASONS FOR REPORT RECOMMENDATIONS 

50



  
7.1 The purpose of this report is to make CTEOSC aware of our obligations under 

Part 4 of the Local Democracy, Economic Development and Construction Bill 
(clauses 63 and 64) which places a new duty on unitary authorities to assess the 
economic conditions of their area and to enlist support for the approach outlined. 

 
 
 

SUPPORTING DOCUMENTATION 
 
Appendices: 
 
1. Summary of work to be undertaken in completion of the Local Economic 

Assessment including current data and gaps. 
 

2. Members Process Timetable 
 
Documents in Members’ Rooms 
 
None 
 
Background Documents 
 
None 
 

51



52



Item 22 Appendix 1 

Local Economic Assessment Action Plan & Data Analysis 

 

Theme Current Knowledge Data Gap Potential Sources, data 
sharing partners and 
external commissioning 

Economic 
Linkages 

Commuting Patterns by 
Road and Rail daily 

Historical Migration Patterns 
- regional, national and 
international flows (workers, 
students, net immigration). 

Business linkages 
– regional, national 
and international. 

Role of Gatwick 
and London, effect 
of proximity to 
Continent / 
European Union. 

Supply chain 
stability (long run) 

- Considering source for 
commissioning external 
research into business to 
business linkages. 

Structure of 
the economy 

Employment structure.  

Skills structure.  

GVA by industrial sector, 
totals and per-capita. 

Shifts towards higher value 
added sectors – 
compositional changes. 

- ‘Zero class 
employment’, sole 
traders and recent 
registrations in 
terms of structural 
transition. 

- Modelling the 
effect of external 
changes on our 
structure in the 
future. 

Need to commission 
research to provide 
granular GIS employment / 
business land use data. 

Enterprise 
and 
Innovation 

CLES KBI report for the SE 
Diamonds. 

Start up data from Business 
Link.  

- ‘Zero class 
employment’, sole 
traders and recent 
registrations. 

  

Need to map ‘zero-class’ 
start ups. 

- Potential collaboration 
with Universities / SINC to 
produce a mini-section on 
innovation blockers and 
drivers. 

Business 
Needs 

Business Survey Results. 
Historical enquiry trends.  

CPD feedback and enquiry 
trends. 

Pending Business 
Survey results. 

- Business Link / Wired 
Sussex to contribute their 
data. 

Demography Good data all round. Long run transition 
projections. 

 

 

Labour 
Market 

Good general data. 

Un/employment, economic 
activity and inactivity by age, 
qualification, ethnic group 
etc. 

Demand for skills 
and dislocation 
with supply 
availability by 
sector. 

 

- Considering internal 
research into whether we 
can attribute low 
employment rate to housing 
issue since we have good 
data on this.   

53



 

Skills Good ONS data on 
demography of skills.  

Current demand 
gap. 

Skills of the 
employed by 
sector. 

Potential 
duplication in skills 
provision. 

- Further research needed 
to map the skills demand / 
supply gap.  

- Potential to apply 
‘matching software’ recently 
developed to assess our 
skills provision gaps.  

Economic 
and Social 
Exclusion 

JSA and long term 
incapacity data.  

Structures reinforcing 
exclusion – student 
dominated labour market. 

Incentives re-enforcing 
exclusion – housing. 

Out of date IMD 
(2004).  

- Performance to feed in 
with Worklessness and 
Child poverty assessment. 

- Considering wider 
external research into 
deprivation in the city / 
CYPT and adult social care 
collaboration. 

The Natural 
and Historic 
Environment 

Resource and Land use 
changes over time 

Potential impacts 
of Shoreham 
harbour and the 
proposed Wind 
Farm 

- External report to be 
considered on future land 
use and resource 
constraints 

Low Carbon 
Economy 

6th lowest CO2 emissions 
per Capita in Brighton & 
Hove; excessively high 
levels of embedded CO2 in 
products the city imports. 

Many businesses based on 
carbon intensive energy 
inputs. 

What is a low 
carbon economy? 

How will we make 
the transition that is 
needed?  

What are our 
targets? 

- Sustainability Strategy 
Betre / Carbon Trust /10:10 
to feed in with carbon 
savings data where 
possible. 

Transport Transport data, results from 
linkages mapping and 
commute data. 

Previous mapping of 
transport needs and 
infrastructure capability  

Data to assess 
whether, transport 
is sufficient to 
support economic 
development in the 
future 

- Core Strategy, Transport 
Plan, Regional Transport 
plan 

 

  

Housing Housing data is 
comprehensive but also 
complex. 

Needs gaps and targets 
already identified from the 
strategic housing review ‘08. 

Core Strategy 
housing plan  

 

 

Housing Strategy  / 
Planning Core Strategy 

Overall 
Economic 
Competitiven
ess 

GVA data; CLES and Centre 
for Cities comparator data; 
UKCI 2010; Sustainable 
Cities Index. 

 

All other standard ONS 
data. 

Future Projections, 
Modelling Change 
and Transition 
effects in an 
uncertain Global 
climate. 

 

 

- External research already 
conducted (UN IPCC, etc) - 
which models future global 
market changes - can be 
combined with our local 
knowledge to map 
‘resilience’ to different 
scenarios or future external 
change. 

 

54



 

Agenda Item 22  Appendix 2 

Members Process Timetable 

 

2010 2011 

July August September October November December January February March 

22
nd
 Cabinet 

Paper 

Initial briefing 

Leadership 

Briefing on 

Progress 

 Members’ 

Workshop 

Leadership 

Briefing on 

Outcomes of 

Workshop & 

Draft LEA 

7
th –  

CMM - 

Enterprise, 

Employment 

& Major 

Projects Sign 

Off Draft LEA 

 3
rd – Paper to 

Culture, 

Tourism & 

Enterprise 

Overview & 

Scrutiny on 

Draft LEA 

 

 

       Leadership 

Briefing on 

Outcomes of 

Scrutiny 

meeting 

 

       17
th – 

Cabinet Sign 

Off 

 

 

 
 

5
5



5
6



CULTURE, TOURISM & 
ENTERPRISE OVERVIEW AND 
SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 

Agenda Item 23  
Brighton & Hove City Council 

 

 

 

 

Subject: Free Swimming Initiative  

Date of Meeting: 30th September 2010 

Report of: The Acting Director of Environment 

Contact Officer: Name:  Toby Kingsbury Tel: 29-2701 

 E-mail: toby.kingsbury@brighton-hove.gov.uk  

Wards Affected: All  

 

 

FOR GENERAL RELEASE  

 

1. SUMMARY AND POLICY CONTEXT: 

 

1.1 The Culture, Tourism and Enterprise Overview and Scrutiny Committee 
have requested an update following the end of the Free Swimming 
Initiative for over 60s and children aged 16 and under.  

 

2. RECOMMENDATIONS: 

 

2.1 Members are requested to note the success of the Free Swimming 
Initiative and are advised of the extended version of the scheme as 
detailed below. 

 

3. BACKGROUND INFORMATION 

 

3.1 The Council opted into the Free Swimming Initiative for over 60s and 
children 16 and under and were one of only two local authorities in 
Sussex to offer the full scheme to both age groups. The initiative was 
funded by central government through the Department for Culture, 
Media and Sport and was supported further in Brighton and Hove 
through funding from NHS Brighton and Hove.   

 

3.2 The Free Swimming Initiative was initially planned to be funded for two 
years from 1st April 2009 to 31st March 2011 but in June 2010 the 
government announced that funding would cease on 31st July 2010.  

 

3.3 Before the end of the initiative, the Council announced that with  
continued funding from NHS Brighton and Hove, the initiative would 

57



 

 

continue for the remainder of the school summer holidays and would 
be extended for children aged 11 and under until 31st March 2011. 

 

3.4 The reason for retaining the initiative for children aged 11 and under is 
that this age group are a key target group for NHS Brighton and Hove 
in their strategy to tackle childhood obesity in the city.  

 

3.5 Officers have undertaken some research into extended initiatives 
offered by other local authorities across the South East. Of the 18 local 
authorities researched, 6 extended their existing initiative through the 
school summer holidays. Brighton & Hove is the only authority to have 
extended an initiative to the end of the current financial year.       

 

 Participation levels in Brighton and Hove 

 

3.6 A total of 14,418 children aged 16 and under and 4,778 over 60s were 
registered for free swimming up until 31st July 2010. 

 

3.7 There were a total of 79,675 individual swims from children 16 and 
under and 56,059 from over 60s. When compared to before the 
initiative started, these figures represent an increase in the number of 
swims of approximately 24% for those aged 16 and under and 17% for 
those over 60.  

  
 Impact of the scheme’s withdrawal 
 
3.8 The initiative being prematurely ceased will obviously impact most 

upon those who enjoyed its benefits i.e over 60s and children aged 16 
and under, particularly those on low income. The extent of the impact is 
difficult to predict and will only become apparent when we see the 
participation figures over the coming months and are able to make an 
accurate comparison. 

 
3.9 The Council has been able to reduce this impact by extending the 

initiative until the end of the school summer holidays and also by 
retaining free swimming for children aged 11 and under until 31st March 
2011. 

 
3.10 Although there will inevitably be a drop-off in the number of swimmers 

as a result of the initiative being withdrawn, it is hoped that many of 
those who have enjoyed free swimming will have developed a 
swimming habit and will be more likely to continue despite having to 
pay for it. 

 
 Plans for the future 
 
3.11 The extended initiative (free swimming for those aged 11 and under) is 

planned to cease on 31st March 2011. Before this date the Council will 

58



 

 

consult with NHS Brighton and Hove to explore what future funding 
might be available and assess the possibility of continuing the initiative 
is some form. 

 
3.12 Regardless of any free swimming initiatives, the King Alfred, Prince 

Regent and St Luke’s continue to operate a concessionary pricing 
structure designed to help minimise the cost of swimming for people 
over 60 and children 16 and under. 

 
3.13 The Council are also looking to develop a leisure card scheme 

designed to allow access to facilities at a discounted rate for those 
residents in receipt of certain state benefits. This should help to 
improve participation levels and reduce inequality of access to the 
facilities.  

 
4.      CONSULTATION  

 

4.1 Consultation was undertaken with NHS Brighton and Hove and DC 
Leisure when considering options to extend the scheme. 

 

5.       FINANCIAL & OTHER IMPLICATIONS  

 
5.1 Financial Implications  

 

Residual funding for the 2010/11 financial year totals £133,486, from the 
remaining DCMS Grant (£67,486) and Brighton & Hove PCT ((£66,000). 
The Council has committed £70,581 in payments to DC Leisure for the 
provision of free swimming, of which £11,323 is for under 11’s for the 
period of September 2010 to March 2011. 

The remaining funds of £62,905 will be allocated to the King Alfred 
Leisure Centre to recompense loss revenue through the provision of free 
swimming for the year April 2010 to March 2011. 

There were 39,268 free swims for under 16s at the King Alfred in 
2009/10 and records show that the majority of these were under 11 
(97%). If (using the data in section 3.6) it is assumed that 76% of this 
group would pay to swim, this would equate to a loss of income through 
free swimming of £71,228. The number of free swims for the over 60 
age group in the current financial year was 10,552, if 83% would have 
paid for the swim this would equate to lost income of £16,378. 

Therefore the shortfall in recompense for loss of income to the King 
Alfred LC would equate to £24,701 which will be met from existing 
budgets within the department. 

 

Finance Officer Consulted   Name: Derek Mansfield Date 14/9/10  

 
5.2 Legal Implications  

 

59



 

 

The actions referred to in this report are considered to be reasonable 
given the circumstances of the funding situation. 

  

Lawyer  Consulted                    Name  Bob Bruce Date 13/9/10  

 
5.3 Equalities Implications 

 

The cessation of the Free Swimming Initiative has reduced the 
accessibility of residents to access swimming facilities in Brighton and 
Hove. However, the extended scheme has minimised this by allowing 
children aged 11 and under to continue to swim for free until 31st March 
2011. 

 
5.4 Sustainability Implications 

 

None. 

 
5.5 Crime & Disorder Implications 

 

Projects have shown that providing physical activity opportunities can 
help reduce crime within geographical areas. Therefore the withdrawal 
of free swimming could have a negative impact on the reduction of crime 
in the city. 

 
5.6 Risk & Opportunity Management Implications 

 

None 

 
5.7 Corporate/Citywide Implications 

 

The withdrawal of free swimming will make the facilities less accessible, 
particularly to those on low income and will not help towards the 
Council’s objective of providing opportunities for healthy living.  

 

 

 

 

60



Agenda Item  24 
Proposed Work Programme for 2010 

30 September 2010 25 November 2010 26 January 2011 Future meetings 
 

 

• Legibility Study (Jim Mayor) 
 

• Marathon – feedback 
 
 

• Leisure contracts feedback 
 

• Local Economic 
Assessment (from CMM) 

 

• In year budget savings – 
free swimming 

 

• CTEOSC scrutiny panels 
(Tom Hook) 

 

• Presentation from Dome 
and Festival (Andrew 
Comben) 

 

• Golf Courses – Mytime 
Active presentation (Toby 
Kingsbury) 

 

• Update from 
Environmental Industries 
Panel report (Paula Murray) 

 

• Sustainability guidelines 
(Jayne Babb) 

 

• Local Enterprise 
Partnership report (Paula 
Murray) 

 

• Update on LAA ? 
 

• Business case for culture 
(Paula Murray)? 

 

• Ad hoc panel – Cultural 
Provision for Children 
report. 

 

• New England House ??? 
 

 
 

Budget report (meeting 
moved from  CTEOSC 3 
February 2011) 
 
 
PART TWO 
 
Major Projects update 

 
 

• The Natural History 
Collection and the Booth  

 Museum (from Dec 2009) 
 

• Co-operatives and social 
enterprises (suggestion 
by Cllr Kennedy)? 

 

• Report back from Future 
of Museums workshop 

 
 

6
1



 
 

    

 

 
Other possible items suggested:  County Cricket Ground – update on development 
 

 
Possible workshop -   Credit Unions/social enterprise/personal finance. 
     Future of Museums (date tbc) 
 
 
 
 

6
2



CULTURE, TOURISM & 
ENTERPRISE OVERVIEW 
AND SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE 
 

Agenda Item 25 
 

Brighton & Hove City Council 

 

 

Subject: CTEOSC Scrutiny Panel Options   

Date of Meeting: 30 September 2010 

Report of: Acting Director of Strategy and Governance 

Contact Officer: Name:  Tom Hook Tel: 29-1110 

 E-mail: Tom.hook@brighton-hove.gov.uk 

Wards Affected: All  

 
FOR GENERAL RELEASE 
 
1.  SUMMARY AND POLICY CONTEXT: 

 
1.1 Each Overview and Scrutiny Committee has the power to establish scrutiny 

panels to undertake short, focused reviews on specific issues. During July 
consultation was undertaken with residents, partners and Members as to their 
priorities for scrutiny reviews during 2010/11. This report sets out the results of 
this consultation as relevant to CTEOSC. 

 
2. RECOMMENDATIONS: 
 
2.1 That CTEOSC: 

 
(1) Notes the results of the consultation  
 
(2) Decides upon topics for future scrutiny panels based upon appendix 1 
 

 
3. RELEVANT BACKGROUND INFORMATION/CHRONOLOGY OF KEY EVENTS: 

 
3.1 Public consultation on possible scrutiny panel topics ran during the course of July 

with a total 69 separate suggestions for scrutiny topics received. The consultation 
was promoted through a number of means: 

 
1. All Members of the council were invited to submit ideas 
2. All LSP themed partnerships were written to and scrutiny officers 

attended a number of partnership meetings 
3. Citynews and the Argus both carried articles promoting the consultation 
4. A press release was issued and promoted on Facebook and Twitter 
5. Information was be added to the Consultation Portal at 

http://consult.brighton-hove.gov.uk/portal  
 

63



 

 

3.2 Preliminary research has been undertaken to see which suggestions are 
suitable topics for scrutiny. This has been based on criteria agreed previously 
at OSC and outlined below:  

• Length of review – Topics need to be achievable within 3-4 meetings, or 
undertaken as Select Committees in around 6 meetings.  

• Relevance to Brighton and Hove – The focus needs to be a local issue, or 
at least an issue that is within the decision making power of a local 
organisation.  

• Policy Context – What is the policy/strategy development cycle, are 
changes expected to legislation, or has a local strategy just been 
finalised?   

• Alignment to LSP and Council priorities – Reviews of issues identified as 
key to improving the lives of residents are by definition the best use of 
scrutiny resources.  

• Highlighted as an issue within performance regimes – Is the issue in 
question something that has been shown as requiring improvement during 
performance monitoring? With limited resources scrutiny should avoid 
reviewing issues which the council and partners are seen as doing well.  

• Avoiding duplication with existing work-streams – If a suggestion would 
replicate work already ongoing there is limited utility in also scrutinising it.  

• What is the outcome a scrutiny review could achieve? Will the review be 
able to add value to the issue? 

 

3.3 Appendix 1 outlines all of the topics put forward that fall within the remit of 
CTEOSC. For the topics suggested the scrutiny team has undertaken some 
preliminary scoping.  

 
3.4 CTEOSC is already running a scrutiny panel on cultural provision for children. 

As such any new panel will have to wait until this is completed.    
 

4. CONSULTATION 
 

4.1  This report summarises the consultation responses received from residents, 
Members, officers and partner organisations. Consultation was undertaken 
throughout July.   

 
5.  FINANCIAL & OTHER IMPLICATIONS: 
 

  Financial Implications: 
5.1 There are no financial implications as all panel work will be undertaken within 

the existing resource envelope allocated to scrutiny.  
 
  Legal Implications: 
5.2 The recommendations at 2.1 is consistent with the statutory framework for 

overview and scrutiny committees under section 21 of the Local Government 
Act 2000.   

   

  Equalities Implications: 
5.3 In undertaking detailed scoping work on panels equality implications will be 

addressed. The consultation as a whole has highlighted some equality issues 
that can be taken forward.  

 

64



 

 

  Sustainability Implications: 
5.4  There are no direct implications.   
 
 Crime & Disorder Implications:  
5.5  There are no direct implications.   
 
 Risk & Opportunity Management Implications: 
5.6 The consultation exercise was undertaken to ensure that scrutiny resources 

are focused on the most appropriate areas. There is an opportunity for scrutiny 
to influence some of the key issues facing the city.     

 
 Corporate / Citywide Implications: 
5.7  An annual work programme for scrutiny reviews should enable the scrutiny 

function to respond to those issues that affect the city as a whole and take a 
more active role in place-shaping.  

 
SUPPORTING DOCUMENTATION 

Appendices: 

1. Panel scoping information 

 
Documents in Members’ Rooms 
None 
 
Background Documents 
1. The Community Engagement Framework 
2. Report to March OSC 

 
  
 

65



66



Appendix 1 
 
Potential topics for scrutiny panels 
 

1. Music Industry  
The importance of the Music Industry was highlighted in a recent national 
report showing that: ‘The value of the British live music industry last year was 
£1.54bn, up an impressive 9.4% on 2008’ at a time of recession. In Brighton 
and Hove, this is certainly a key, dynamic and growing sector evidenced by 
the following for example: 
 

• The city hosts one of the leading UK music industry showcases The 
Great Escape, which attracts audiences of 15,000 

• There are at least 45 venues that regularly host live music with a total 
combined capacity of 18,457 

• The city has at least 5 independent record shops  

• There are an estimated 500 local bands and many local choirs, 
orchestras and music societies 

• Has a population keen to experience live music e.g. 2 Universities 

• In the annual Taking Part Survey undertaken by Government, 
attending live music events is high on the list of cultural activity 

  
In overall terms, a Scrutiny Panel exercise could establish in more detail the 
scale and size and importance of the sector and most importantly its future 
potential.  It could make recommendations on potential interventions by the 
city council and other partners and contribute to the development of other 
relevant policy and guidance.   
 
A report produced by Brighton Institute of Modern Music (BIMM) for the B&H 
Arts Commission concluded that the city ‘…has one of the highest numbers of 
live music venues per capita in the UK, which is central to the city’s reputation 
of enjoying a ‘thriving’ music scene’. But when it comes to the larger names in 
music ‘…we are a commuter city’. This is primarily because there is ‘a 
shortage of venues with over 600 capacity’.  
 
Other key local issues were also highlighted in the BIMM report or have arisen 
from recent events relating to smaller music venues and festivals in the city. 
These include: 
 
Do we have the right number and size of music Venues? 

• Small venues – a healthy number but the recent problems facing 
venues such as the Freebutt  

• Intermediate venues – only 2 now Old Market closed down 

• Large venues 600+ Brighton Centre, Corn Exchange, Dome    

• Potential of Falmer Stadium  
 
 
 
 

67



What is the key role of festivals in the city? 

• The growth in revenue from live music nationally is seen to be mainly 
due to Festivals – the top 200 festivals contribute £450m to the 
economy 

• Successes in the city of The Great Escape and Brighton Live 

• However, ’the purely commercial music festival businesses has not yet 
fared well in the city and its surrounds’ e.g. Beach Down 

• Open air events such as Fat Boy Slim, White Air – are we getting them 
right and can the city cope with them?  

 
What are the financial implications of being a ‘commuter’ city for music?  
The Panel could consider what revenue is lost in terms of both residents of 
B&H travelling to other towns to see live music and the potential employment 
and tourism opportunities that could result if suitable larger venues were 
available in the city. 
  
This scrutiny review is recommended to take place to produce the following 
beneficial outcomes:  

• A strategy for enabling the continuing growth of the live music scene in 
the city.  

 
Recommendation – possible panel topic.   
 
2. How to Support Independents and Develop Brighton & Hove’s 

Unique Retail Offer 
 
The original issue that was raised was looking at the impact of supermarkets 
on small businesses including: 

• Can the Planning process be used to limit the number of larger 
chains/supermarkets 

• Their impact on small businesses during a recession 

• The loss of green spaces  
 
However some of the benefits of supermarkets need to be acknowledged, 
including lower food prices and enabling developments in the city to take 
place. Research has also shown that in some areas the building of a new 
supermarket has attracted new shoppers to the area e.g. the Tesco in Hove 
and the impact on George Street. 
 
Local stores are more likely to have a higher economic multiplier effect, with 
profits being re-spent in the local economy. Local retailers also provide some 
of the essential character and visitor offer of the city. Data has shown the 
resilience of small local retail shops in the city in maintaining employment and 
increasing stock over the past decade. The All-Parliamentary Small Shops 
Group report has spoken about ‘…the intense pressure small shops face’. 
 
Nationally in 2007 supermarkets had an 85% share of the UK groceries 
market, with the ‘big four’ accounting for an almost 75% share.  
 

68



Supermarkets have A1 class use and planning cannot be refused on the basis 
of competition, so councils only have limited in power to prevent more 
supermarkets locating in their area.  
 

The RB of Kensington & Chelsea set up a Retail Commission to look at how 
larger chains and small retailers could co-exist. The Commission found that 
although the national trend for fewer shops, but larger units, would continue:  
 
‘Small specialist shops are essential to sustain the diversity, vibrancy and 
character of shopping areas’.  
 

The recommendations, produced in 2007, contained a set of actions for local 
authorities which could be explored in relation to this city. Similar work was 
also undertaken in Leicester in 2008.   
  
A recent report from the New Economics Foundation highlighted that the 
towns most dependent on big chains were also likely to be the most 
vulnerable to the economic crisis. http://www.neweconomics.org/press-releases/clone-

town-britain-2010-high-street-diversity-still-on-endangered-list  
 

Importance of small traders in the city 
 
Figure show that ‘80.5% of Brighton & Hove businesses employ less than 5 
people’ 
 
Concerns over the potential impacts of supermarkets at specific locations e.g  
Portland Road 
 
Traders concern in this area led to work being done promoting the Council’s 
support for small traders 
 
Business Retention and Inward |nvestment Strategy highlights the importance 
of retaining and supporting existing businesses 
 
Council initiatives to support local retailers 
 
These include: 

• Be Local Buy Local 

• Business Lifebelt Campaign – Ride the Wave campaign is part of the 
Council’s ‘counter recession’ work  

 
LSP – A key priority is to ‘Promote Enterprise and Learning’ and highlights the 
work of the ‘Be Local, Buy Local’ and Business Lifebelt campaigns to assist 
employment and economic development. 
 
Council – ‘Protect the environment while growing the economy’. The 
Corporate Plan refers to the need to protect our ‘unique retail experiences’1 
and giving space for businesses to start and grow.  

                                            
1
 BHCC Corporate Plan 2008-2011  http://www.brighton-
hove.gov.uk/downloads/bhcc/performance_team/Corporate_Plan_2008_V310708.pdf 
 

69



 
Due to the size of the topic, the scrutiny could take as a starting point looking 
at how the council can ensure it offers a consistent and effective support to 
local retailers. Focus on the powers the council has, including through 
Planning and special initiatives, to:  
 
‘…mitigate the closure of independent retail and maximise the opportunities 
around local, independent and secondary retail centres.2’  
 
It could then determine whether it wanted to look at further issues such as 
those outlined in the Recommendations section below.  
 
This issue was considered in a brief report to Enterprise, Employment and 
Major Projects Cabinet Member Meeting on 15th September 2009. However it 
would be beneficial to look at this issue in greater detail. This could include 
the following outcomes, to:   

• Map Council services which relate to, or are used by, local retailers and 
larger shops and assess their consistency  

• Consider the impact of express supermarkets in specific locations in 
the city 

• Develop pro-active intelligence about potential new multinational retail 
units and use to assist enforcement  

• Look at further ways of assisting local retailers and showing them the 
Council’s support 

• Understand the impact of Coalition cuts to business support services 

• Examining ways to attract foreign spend into the city and on smaller 
 
Recommendation – Possible panel topic, although waiting changes to national 
legislations may be sensible.  
 

3.  Innovative ways to support culture 
 
Issue: Reduced funding in future years may have a detrimental impact upon 
non statutory cultural provision. CTEOSC is already considering in its work-
programme the ‘economic case for culture’.  
 
A Scrutiny panel could build upon this and look at: 
 

o alternative and additional ways to support this sector such as joint 
commissioning, examining other related business models and the issue 
of private donors. 

 
o Creating a business case for culture for the  

 
o Other models of provision such as Glasgow Life which is a company 

limited by guarantee which has been established to manage culture 

                                            
2
 Impact of Supermarkets on Local Businesses report to Enterprise, Employment and Major 
Projects CMM, agenda http://present.brighton-
hove.gov.uk/mgConvert2PDF.aspx?ID=2147&T=10 

70



and sporting services in this city. Its sub-brands include Glasgow Arts, 
Glasgow Museums and Glasgow Sports. The Board of this company 
includes councillors and the former leader of the Council.  

 
Recommendation – possible panel topic.  
 
4.  End of Renaissance funding 
 
Renaissance is a governmentt funded programme to transform regional 
museums. B&H currently receives c. £1m per year for this programme. Not 
currently clear how projects will be affected in the future. Also not known how 
will the shortfall be made up when renaissance funding comes to an end? A 
verbal update on the future of this funding from the Head of Royal Pavilion & 
Museums to CTEOSC on 1st July highlighted that future of alternative funding 
opportunities was not clear, for example:  
 
‘The Museums, Libraries & Archives (MLA) review was considering core 
funding museums with designated collections and big audiences. This would 
be 5 year funding. Challenge funding is being considered for other museums 
which would involve strategic commissioning.’ 
 
Recommendation – There is already a significant amount of work being 
undertaken in this area and scrutiny will be involved in this issue through:  

• A Museum workshop which will consider this issue is being run in 
October 2010  

• Report on the business case for culture to on CTEOSC 
workprogramme 

There would be limited utility in establishing a panel.  
 
5.  Developing B&H as a destination 
 
Issue: balancing its appeal as a party town against other tourism 
opportunities and developing the city as a conference town 
 
A SWOT analysis to develop the most recent tourism strategy highlighted as a 
weakness; 
 

‘…achieving the right balance between the hedonism of night-time 
economy and desire to provide quality offer to all visitors’.    

 
This is an area where a significant amount of policy/strategy/monitoring is 
already being done, for example:  

• No significant concerns were raised about Tourism when CTEOSC 
received a report on the Tourism Strategy at their meeting on 1st July 
2010. A report on Tourism highlighted the good performance in this 
area, which included being given an average score of 8.45 in the 2009 
On Street Visitor survey 

• A comprehensive tourism strategy has been developed for 2008-2018.   
 

71



Recommendation – Monitoring of the tourism strategy should be built into 
CTEOSC’s work-programme.  
 
6. Provision of Arts for the Deaf Community 
 
In working with the city’s deaf community and John Walker (Convenor of Deaf 
Studies, Sussex Uni), an issue has emerged surrounding the lack of theatre 
and cinema performances in B&H where there is provision of a British Sign 
Language interpreter, and the general exclusion experienced by the city’s 
deaf community in terms of the arts.  This might make a good topic for a one-
day session, as per the snow scrutiny. 
 
There are different levels of communication with deaf people, depending on 
which language they were taught at school. This could have been only Sign 
Language (SL), or SL and English. Generally, deaf people’s main form of 
communication is SL.  Some people are deaf and blind and their 
communication and access to services are even more limited. 
 
 
Current issues 

• SL isn’t always an effective way of accessing cultural activities as deaf 
people concentrate on the interpreter and miss out on the performance. 

• Some deaf people prefer subtitles if their level of English is good, but 
not all deaf people can read.  

• General number, timing and publicity for cinema/theatre performances 
for deaf people 

• Speed of the interpreters and subtitles should be at a manageable  

• Theatre interpreters cost more as they have to learn the scripts. If the 
attendance is not good then it may not be lucrative for the Theatre. 

• Selected days at cultural attractions – museum/Pavillion etc – have 
been successful  

• Location of signers/subtitles can be problematic 

• Highly visual performances e.g. christmas pantomimes are popular 

• Are special performances commercially viable? 

• Deaf Theatre Groups present performances e.g. Krazy Katz. These 
tend to be small plays rather than the full play and can be aimed more 
at children.   

• Some deaf people are unable to read and therefore are unable to fill 
out the forms to join the library membership. Feedback received was 
that on an occasion no one at the library could help the deaf person, so 
they ended up walking out. 

• Anecdotal evidence suggests other cities (e.g. Bristol) offer a wider 
choice of films with subtitles.  

• Hearing people sometimes complain about the subtitles in films, as it 
can reduce the size of the picture. 

 
Recommendation – Ask for a presentation/report to be added to the 
Committee’s work plan for spring 2011. This may be something to pick up as 
a panel after that.  

72



 
 
7. Seafront facilities for children and young people 
 
Give Brighton facilities for children and families that we can be proud of, the 
old paddling pool which was ideal in design has just been removed, and a 
small fancy one supplied, nowhere for parents or grandparents who 
accompany these children, to sit down, or toilets. it is just paying lip service to 
the huge demand for childrens play areas. It seems the council and therefore 
the town doesn’t want families here. I’m glad my children are grown up, but 
when my grandchildren visit I am ashamed to show them the only place to 
play – that small paddling pool. Come on Brighton, we have hundreds if not 
thousands of kids who need proper facilities on our sea front, take a lesson 
from Worthing, Littlehampton, or Eastbourne! 
 
Visit Brighton describes Brighton Seafront as; 
‘Dominated by the famous pebble beach and the architectural beauty of 
Regency squares and crescents, Brighton and Hove seafront is a relaxed, 
friendly and diverse place to eat, shop and play. Try your hand at volleyball, 
basketball and a wealth of watersports, go east on the Volks, England's oldest 
electric railway, stop off at the Sea Life Centre or head west for the children's 
play area, the green expanse of Hove Lawns and watersports of Hove 
Lagoon’ 
 
It is hard to see where a scrutiny panel could add value to this issue; there are 
a wide range of facilities available on the seafront already.  
 
8. Personal Finance in the City 
 
National CAB figures for the first quarter of 2010/11 show problems relating to 
consumer credit debts showed a slight decrease for the first time in two years. 
However there were still significant increases in enquiries about most priority 
debts, which are those where the consequences of not paying are most 
serious, between Q1 2009/10 and Q1 2010/11. 

o Water supply debts rose 18%   
o Council tax arrears rose 7%  
o Telephone debts rose 7%  
o Rent arrears to private landlords rose 18%  

 
Independent Legal advice providers within Brighton and Hove including the 
Citizens Advice Bureau, BHT and MACS gave one to one advice to over 
17,000 residents in 2008–09, helping them to deal with their debts, maximise 
their incomes and stay in their homes during the difficult economic climate. 
Much of this work was and continues to be delivered and supported by highly 
skilled, trained and dedicated volunteers in the city. 
 
Changes at a national level to tax, benefits and pensions will clearly have an 
impact on debt levels. The publication of the Comprehensive Spending 
Review in October 2012 will provide some clarity on this.   
 

73



Brighton and Hove has a large student population, a recent survey found the 
average debt per year of study for the year 2010 has risen to £5,340, an 
increase of 5.4% from the previous year. Students starting university in the 
next academic year will graduate with an average of almost £25,000 worth of 
debt. 
 
Recommendation – It is suggested that as this is a very cross-cutting issue 
(benefits, third sector, housing, council tax, credit union, employment etc) that 
a workshop session for scrutiny members is developed in 2011. There is an 
LSP group that seeks to coordinate the work of advice services, and any 
scrutiny activity should be linked with this group.  
 
 

74


	Agenda
	14 PROCEDURAL BUSINESS
	15 MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING
	19 Marathon Update
	22 Statutory Local Economic Assessment Duty
	Econ assess Appendix 1
	Econ Assess Appendix 2

	23 In Year Budget Savings - Free Swimming Initiative
	24 Work Programme
	25 CTEOSC Scrutiny Panels
	Agenda Item 25 Appendix 1


